financial

statements

2017-18

Year in summary
Contents
Strategic Report and Report of the Board

4

Auditor’s report

28

Financial Statements

30

Notes to the Financial Statements

36

Registered Office, Principal Advisors and Lenders

73

The Guinness Partnership Limited Board

74

The Guinness Partnership Limited Executive Team

75

£3,159
Social housing
cost per unit

G1 V1
Governance
and Financial
Viability gradings
(Regulator of Social Housing 2018)

£374m

Group turnover

£3.7bn
Cost of Group’s
housing properties.

78%

Customer
satisfaction
The Guinness Partnership

A
A2

(stable)

Standard & Poor’s

Group surplus

homes
140,000
housing over

(stable)

Moody’s
Quayside,
Totnes

£53.8m 66,000
customers

3

Strategic Report and
Report of the Board

About Guinness
What we’re here to do
Guinness was founded in 1890 to improve people’s lives
and create possibilities for them. What we’re here for hasn’t
changed. We fulfil that purpose, our social purpose, by
providing great homes and services – including care services
– to over 140,000 people across the country.
We provide homes and housing services to around 66,000
households and deliver over 400,000 hours of care every year.
Our core activities are housing for social and affordable rent,
affordable home ownership, housing for older people and a
range of care services, including domiciliary and extra care,
supported and retirement living.

others, by creating the conditions for us all to succeed,
and by always giving their very best. Everyone at Guinness is
ambitious for the organisation and for themselves. They want
us to be really good at what we do, and they give their best to
make that happen. To deliver our vision.

•

To be able to trust us.

•

For us to respect them and their time.

•

For us to engage with them and listen to them.

•

For us to put things right when they go wrong, including
when we get them wrong.

Our vision

•

Not to be stigmatised because they live in social housing.

Our vision is for Guinness to:

We can’t always do everything for everyone because our
resources are finite, but we’ll never compromise on safety.
It has never been more important to us, for all landlords – to
listen to our customers than it is now, in the aftermath of the
Grenfell fire. It is fundamental that people are safe, and feel
safe, in their homes. If they have concerns, they need to know
that we will listen and act and we are doing everything we can
to address the stigma associated with social housing.

•

Deliver great service – to be one of the best service
providers in the housing and care sectors.

•

Provide great homes – to provide as many high quality
homes as possible, and to play a significant part in tackling
the country’s housing crisis.

Our heritage matters to us and we’re proud of our long history
which gives us a real sense of purpose. It also creates a strong
sense of responsibility, of having a legacy to protect for future
generations, as well as to make the most of today.

•

Be a great place to work – to be one of the best
employers in the country.

We’re also proud of our more recent past. The last three years
are a significant part of the Guinness story. By working hard and
asking ourselves tough questions, we’ve transformed the way we
are organised, the way we do things and the systems we use.

•

And to:
Be a great business – to be a strong and efficient
business that does things well, and that people can
trust and rely on.

We’ve grown to over 66,000 homes through the development
of new homes and through merger, we’re doing things even
better and we’ve become stronger – more than ever we’re a
customer focused business.

These are the things that matter most to us. This is our
social purpose. Everything we do is about our customers,
our communities and our people. Any surplus we make is
reinvested in new and existing homes, and improving services
for the benefit of our communities.

Our social purpose

Our work

Our social purpose extends beyond providing high quality
affordable homes. We work with our partners to make sure our
business is carried out sustainably, ethically, and responsibly.

The work that housing associations do is important, and there
is an extraordinary demand for our homes and services. We
want to do as much as possible to meet that demand, and to
be here for as many people as possible.

We want to make a difference in the wider community and we
invest in activities that support our communities, working
closely with partners across a number of sectors.
Guinness is a Registered provider of Social Housing with
charitable status, providing housing and care services,
including providing as many quality new homes as possible.
Guinness people believe in what we’re here for, our social
purpose. They are committed to our customers, each other
and to our future and our reputation.
Our Leadership and Management Standard recognises
the challenge of running a business for a social purpose.
Our leaders and managers have the skills, knowledge and
determination to shape our future and make us successful
today. They do this by expecting a lot of themselves and
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The Guinness Partnership Group has over 66,000 homes
under management located in London and the South East, the
North West, North East, Midlands and also in the South West.
We have over 2,800 homes in our development pipeline, this
includes land and options, with over 800 of these homes already
committed to be delivered. We provide care and support to
approximately 10,000 customers and deliver over 8,000 hours
of care every week. We employ over 3,000 people and are a
leading investor in community initiatives and apprenticeships.
Housing association customers, including Guinness customers,
took part in the nationwide conversation with the former
housing minister during the year following the tragic fire at
Grenfell Tower in West London in June 2017. What they
said, and what they say to us, is that they want:

Top 10 Local Authorities
		

Where we operate

Number
of Homes

% of total

Cheshire East

5,473

8%

Milton Keynes

5,209

8%

Havant

3,894

6%

Manchester

3,823

6%

Sheffield

2,370

4%

Rochdale

2,143

3%

Hackney

1,652

2%

Stockport

1,605

2%

Oldham

1,353

2%

Gloucester

1,226

2%

The Guinness Partnership Limited operates in 167 Local
Authority areas across England.

32,035

homes

Rochdale
Oldham
Sheffield
Manchester
Stockport
Cheshire
East

Gloucester

Milton
Keynes
Hackney

Havant

18,619

homes
15,521

homes
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How we’re structured
We provide the majority of our housing services through
The Guinness Partnership Limited (TGPL). The Group does
however include a number of other trading entities and
subsidiaries as shown in the chart below:

The Guinness Partnership Limited

registered with the Regulator of Social Housing
and a charitable entity
Guinness Housing
Association Limited
Non charitable Registered
Provider; provider of
management services
City Response Limited
(trading as Guinness Property)
Responsive repairs and
planned maintenance
works to the Group
Guinness Care and
Support Limited
(trading as Guinness Care)
Care and support services
Independent Home Life
Services Limited
Provision of care services
Kylemore Care
Services Limited
Provision of care services
Live Well at Home Limited
Holding company

Guinness Developments
Limited
Build for market sale,
provider of design and
build services
Guinness Homes Limited
Build for market sale,
provider of management
services
Hallco 1397 Limited
Build for market sale

Guinness Platform
Limited
Provider of design and
build services

Our activities are regulated by the Regulator of Social Housing
(RSH) and the Care Quality Commission (CQC). We have the
highest possible Governance (G1) and Viability (V1) ratings from
the RSH with this rating having been re-confirmed in May 2018
following our regulatory In-Depth Assessment (IDA).
The context we operate in

addressing the national housing crisis, and this is now
better recognised by policy-makers. After four years of rent
reductions, rents will increase from 2021 in a way that is linked
to prevailing levels of inflation. This will create financial capacity
for us to do even more for our customers and to build more
new homes and respond to the imperatives set out in the
2017 Housing White Paper. And with public investment in
social rented housing – through grant or land – we’ll be able
to do even more to provide truly affordable homes. We look
forward to the publication of the Government’s Housing Green
Paper later in the year and we hope to play a significant role in
helping to address the housing crisis through delivery of our
new Guinness 2023 strategy.
As a provider of housing for older people and of care services
for those who prefer to stay in their own homes, we look
forward to the publication of the Government’s Social Care
Green Paper and the outcome of the review of funding of
Supported Housing.
We welcome the opportunities presented to us by this new
policy environment, but at the same time we know that we –
and our customers – are facing a period of increased economic
uncertainty. Departure from the EU presents clear risks to the
construction industry both in respect of labour and materials
and to the housing market, which has been generating an
important source of subsidy for our social housing activity.
It also presents workforce risks to the social care sector –
adding further risk to a sector already under significant
pressure. Welfare reform will continue to place strain on
our customers’ income, and inevitably Guinness’s too.
We must manage these and other external risks facing us.
The tragic fire at Grenfell Tower in West London in June 2017
has changed our worlds forever. We have always prioritised
the safety of our customers and continue to do so and we will
respond to any additional requirements arising from the Grenfell
Public Enquiry and the recently published Hackitt Review of
Building Regulations.
Regulation is an important part of our world. We reflect the
requirements of the Regulator of Social Housing and the
Care Quality Commission in the way we run our business.

Our Strategy
Our Strategy sets out the path for achieving our vision.

Our operating context continues to change as we operate in an
environment of economic and political uncertainty, heightened
by the UK’s planned departure from the European Union (EU)
in early 2019.
Housing and care, and social housing in particular, are high on
the political and policy agenda in a way they haven’t been for
a long time. Housing associations make a vital contribution to
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31 March 2018 marks the end of our previous three year
strategy, Destination 2018, and so it is important that we
recognise the achievements and developments of the last
three years before looking forward to our exciting new five
year strategy, Guinness 2023.

Our Destination 2018 Strategy

over the last three years, has improved, demonstrating that
Guinness remains a great place to work.

Our Destination 2018 strategy set out to enable Guinness to be
one of the best service providers in the housing and care sectors,
one of the best employers in the country, and to generate strong
operating surpluses to fund the building of affordable homes.
In the last three years we have transformed the way we are
organised, the way we do things and the systems we use. We
have achieved much of what we set out to in our Destination 2018
strategy with continued focus on service delivery and streamlined
governance. We have delivered over £12m of cost savings by
fundamentally redesigning our operating model and restructuring
key service areas, starting our programme to rationalise our
supplier base, embarking on our stock rationalisation programme
and closing six offices. We have welcomed 5,500 new
households and 200 new colleagues to Guinness following
our merger with Wulvern Housing in January 2017; we have
secured £12m in grant funding to build 359 new homes; and,
have procured new repairs and servicing contracts to improve
performance and contribute to higher customer satisfaction.
We have continued to empower our staff with the right skills
and tools to deliver great customer service, to add value to our
customers and our business. We launched our new Customer
Relationship Management (CRM) system and the first phase of
our online services during this period to improve efficiency and
our customers’ satisfaction with our services.
We are financially robust and resilient – well positioned for
future growth, and have demonstrated our ability to actively
manage risk.
At the start of Destination 2018 we focused on four key areas
with our performance in each of these shown below:
TGPL measure

2018

2017

2016

Customer satisfaction

78%

77%

76%

We have completed nearly 1,800 new homes across the country
with over 50% of these being affordable. We have also started
to build our future development pipeline which will support our
increased ambitions in this area over the next five years.
We have continued to deliver strong operating margins, despite
the challenges that 1% rent reductions over recent years has
brought us. The rent reductions were not envisaged at the time
that the Destination 2018 strategy was set and the changes
made to how the organisation is structured have enabled us
to mitigate the loss of income.
Our Guinness 2023 Strategy
Our new strategy – Guinness 2023 – defines our plans and
ambitions for the next five years. We will deliver our vision to
improve people’s lives and create possibilities for them – by
delivering great service, providing great homes, being a great
place to work, and being a great business.
Our headline targets for 2023 are:
•

Achieving 85% customer satisfaction.

•

Delivering 7,500 new homes, of which two thirds
will be affordable.

•

Increasing employee engagement to 85%.

•

Maintaining our financial performance with a
30% operating margin.

Great customer service – we will work continuously to improve
our services and make things easier for our customers, giving
them more choice and control by offering more services online
and ensuring their voices are clearly heard.

Great homes – we will provide high quality and safe homes
that people are proud to live in, including investing in our existing
homes, maintaining them to a high standard, upgrading them
New homes built (cumulative)
1,760
1,384
908
and ensuring they always meet or exceed building safety
requirements. We will build 7,500 new homes for both market
Operating margin
31.4% 37.3% 34.5%
sale and affordable tenures. We hope that two thirds of the new
homes will be for affordable tenures with as many as possible for
rent and will continue providing homes for older customers by
We have made progress in all areas at the same time as
fundamentally changing the shape and structure of the organisation. developing more extra care housing.
Employee engagement

74%

75%

66%

A great place to work – we will create a great employee
Levels of customer satisfaction have improved year-on-year as
we have sought to deliver more consistent and accessible services experience, making Guinness a great place to learn, work and
which are focused on the things that matter most to our customers. succeed. We will ensure our people feel valued; empowering
them with the tools, knowledge and support they need to
Employee engagement, a critical component of us being able to succeed, and, will continue to be an open, diverse and
inclusive organisation.
achieve our goals and make the changes to our organisation
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A great business – we will meet our legal and regulatory
requirements and make sure we have an outstanding
compliance record. We’ll maintain our focus on efficiency
and value for money, targeting an operating margin of at least
30% – to balance what we spend day to day and what we
generate to invest in our homes in the future. We will manage
risk so that the strength of the organisation is protected for our
customers, staff and for the future. We will invest in research
and encourage innovation, and we will keep investing in
technology and sustainability to meet future needs as well
as those of today.
We will build on the strong foundations of the last three years
and we’ll keep focusing on our customers and our people –
so that our customers are proud to be Guinness customers,
and so Guinness is an organisation that our people love being
a part of.

How we performed and what we achieved
in 2017/18
We have summarised below our performance and progress
in achieving our key objectives in 2017/18, including an
assessment against key performance indicators that allows
us to monitor, evaluate and demonstrate delivery.

Our customers

asking our customers to help, shape and improve our offer –
it’s about how we make our customers feel. This matters
because our customers are relying on us as a long term
service provider.
During 2017/18 we undertook customer surveys to ensure
we understand what our customers want from us and what
we can do better – all of which inform our customer priorities.
We also updated and simplified our Service Standards so
our customers know when and how they can expect us to
respond to them. Our Guinness Behaviours remind us of the
importance of how we deliver customer service.
During 2017/18 customer satisfaction has increased by
a further 1% to 78%, this has been driven by changes we
have implemented to make it easier for customers to engage
with Guinness. We continue to focus on improving levels of
customer satisfaction by improving key drivers of satisfaction
which are “doing what we say” and “responding quickly”.
Our hard work to deliver our ambition in this area continues
and is at the core of our new strategy.
We were disappointed that the changes we have made to
how we deliver services to our homeowners has not resulted
in improved levels of satisfaction which reduced by 3% to 49%.
This is an area that we must improve and we expect that
the introduction of our new Customer Liaison Service will
help us to increase levels of homeowner satisfaction in
2018/19 and beyond.

		

2018

2017

2016

We continue to achieve extremely high levels of satisfaction with
our care services. The 94% level of customer satisfaction reflects
the value our more vulnerable customers place on the work and
services that Guinness provides to them.

Overall customer satisfaction with
the service we provide (tenants)

78%

77%

76%

At the end of the year, we’ve achieved many of the
goals we set out to achieve. We have:

Overall customer satisfaction with the
service we provide (homeowners)
49%

52%

56%

Overall customer satisfaction with
the service we provide (care)

94%

94%

Making every customer experience amazing, every time

94%

We describe ourselves as a customer service organisation
because it’s our customers that we’re here for.
The range of housing and services we provide means
our customer base is increasingly diverse. We must provide
services in a way that responds to this – and we must provide
the right homes and services, recognising that expectations
are changing all the time and the ways in which technology
enables us to respond is increasingly different.
We know that to be good at what we do, we must listen to our
customers. This has always been important at Guinness and
we’ve been doing it more and more in the last three years.
It is at the heart of our approach to service and goes beyond

•

Launched new digital services for our customers including
live chat, and modern, mobile-friendly online services. Over
6,000 customers are using their MyGuinness online account
to self-serve, and 64% of them are doing this using a mobile
device, predominantly a smartphone. This means that our
customers have the freedom to access our services from
any place and at any time they choose.

•

Received an average of 1,200 chats with customers each
month through live chat and achieved over 93% customer
satisfaction with this new service.

•

Co-created and developed a new Customer Liaison Service
model with customers and colleagues which is focused on
ensuring that we can get things done for our customers.
This new service launched in April 2018.

•

Reduced rent arrears from 3.91% to 3.60% despite the
continuing rollout of welfare reforms with the introduction of
Universal Credit now impacting many more of our customers
across the country.
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•

Helped our customers to secure nearly £9m of income
which has helped them to sustain their tenancies.

Our existing homes

In 2017/18 we:

•

Achieved over 90% customer satisfaction with the
customers we have surveyed regarding our complaints
handling because of our strong focus on keeping
customers informed of progress.

•

Completed 376 new homes – 77% were for social or
affordable rent, 20% for shared ownership and 3% for
outright sale which means that we have delivered nearly
1,800 new homes over the last three years.

•

Achieved 94% customer satisfaction with the way in
which we handle anti-social behaviour with some significant
successes in using the full range of legal remedies open
to us.

Most of our homes are homes for rent at a level below that
which is offered by the private rental market and on tenancy
terms which offer far greater security for our customers. We
continue to invest in our existing homes, as well as building
new ones, focusing our investment to make them safe and
secure places that our customers love living in.

•

Generated surpluses of £5.0m from low cost home
ownership and outright sales across the Group which
provides subsidy for the provision of homes for social
or affordable rent.

•

•

Sustained really high scores for satisfaction with the lettings
experience through delivering our lettings digital process,
which has helped to reduce the time it takes to get new
customers into their Guinness home.
Increased our score for being ‘Warm & Friendly’ from
87% to 90% and our score for being ‘Easy to Deal With’
from 75% to 78% through our improved online service
offer to customers and our focus on making it even easier
for customers to contact us.

•

Trained all of our people in how to deliver ‘Amazing Service’
to our customers.

•

Taken further practical steps to become a dementia-friendly
organisation as part of the Dementia Housing Working
Group – helping to shape the national Dementia-friendly
Housing Charter.

Invested more than £89m in maintaining, improving and
repairing our existing homes.

•

Made further improvements in our asset compliance
performance, helping us to make sure we keep customers
and staff safe. In particular, we finished the year with 100%
testing compliance performance in gas safety, water safety,
fire risk assessments, asbestos surveys and communal
electrical testing.

•

Maintained high levels of performance and satisfaction with
our responsive and planned maintenance services, including
those delivered by our in-house provider Guinness Property.

•

Reduced the average time taken to repair and re-let our
empty homes by seven days to 22.3 days.

•

Responded quickly and effectively to information requests
from Government bodies and other stakeholders in relation
to our taller buildings following the Grenfell Tower tragedy.

•

Our homes
Being smart and efficient so we can invest in
new and existing homes
		
Emergency repairs completed
in the time agreed

2018
95.4%

2017
97.2%

2016

87.0%

88.0%

87.1%

Satisfaction with planned repairs

87.0%

86.1%

86.1%

Re-let turnaround time (days)

22.3

29.7

29.8

Number of new homes completed

376

574

908

% homes meeting the
Decent Homes Standard

100%

100%

100%

Gas certification compliance

100%

100%

99.9%
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•

Enhanced our understanding of the performance of existing
homes and identified those locations where Guinness would
seek to focus its activities over the next five years, using this
to identify 1,800 homes in the Midlands and the North East
which we have agreed to sell to other housing providers.
Completed a detailed review of our housing for older people
schemes and agreed a five year programme of reinvestment
in communal areas.

96.3%

Satisfaction with the last
completed repair

•

Maintained levels of employee engagement during a
period of significant organisational change as we
introduced new structures and ways of working and
integrated the operations and employees of Wulvern
into Guinness following the merger in January 2017.

•

Worked with the Staff Forum and Leadership Team to
finalise our new five year People Strategy, confirming our
People Vision and Principles.

Completed our Quayside development in Totnes, Devon
which consists of a total of 60 homes. Designed for older
people, it provides modern independent living for those over
fifty-five. Our on-site wellbeing service is available 24 hours
a day providing our customers with a variety of personalised
services to support their health and independence. This
development won the ‘Best Specialist Residential’ award
from the Devon Building Control Partnership.

•

Invested in new tools and technologies, making our
people more mobile, and invested in our offices throughout
the country to provide great workspaces.

•

Achieved the Investors in People (IiP) Gold award
(TGPL and GP).

•

Delivered over 10,000 training days for our staff with an
average 5.2 learning days per person.

•

Continued the final phase of the regeneration of our
Loughborough Park Estate in South London, which will
deliver 276 new homes during 2018/19.

•

Launched our new Learning Management System, which
enables employees and managers to easily track their
learning online.

•

Won First Time Buyer Magazine’s Readers’ award for
‘Most Innovative Redevelopment of an Existing Property’
for our One Manor Road development in Brighton.

•

Set up a multi-disciplinary steering group for health and
wellbeing to help develop our approach to further improve
how we promote health and wellbeing at Guinness.

•

Celebrated 295 secondments or internal promotions.

Our people

•

Provided funding to support 58 employees through relevant
professional qualifications.

Making Guinness a great place to work

•

Continued to invest in our apprentices, with 44 directly
employed apprentices during the year.

•

Enabled 90% of our managers to attend Unconscious Bias
training as part of our on-going commitment to respecting
and valuing difference in Guinness.

In 2017/18 we:
•

Our new homes
Through our new home delivery programme we provide
affordable homes for rent, low cost ownership and homes that
people can purchase outright on the open market, recognising
that the shortage of housing in this country affects those
seeking to purchase a home too.
This range of housing meets a range of needs, and any profit
we make on our homes for outright sale helps us invest in and
build more affordable homes.

In 2017/18 we:

•

		

2018

2017

2016

Employee engagement

74.0%

75.0%

66.0%

Employee turnover

12.1%

12.3%

13.1%

•

Investors in People –
TGPL

Recognised members of staff who stand out for their
commitment to our customers in our annual employee
Star Awards event.

Gold

Gold

Gold

•

Investors in People –
Guinness Care

Bronze

Bronze

Bronze

Provided £100 Aspire Personal Learning funding to 119 of
our people to help them explore new interests or personal
development opportunities outside of work.

Investors in People –
Guinness Property

Gold

Gold

Gold

We invest in our staff, reward and recognise their commitment
and ensure they are empowered with the tools, knowledge
and support they need to succeed. We strive to be an open,
diverse and inclusive organisation and promote a culture in
which everyone can contribute their ideas and shape the way
we do things, by increasing the ways in which people can
connect with our vision and engage.
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Going that bit further
Our social purpose extends beyond providing high quality
affordable homes. We work with our partners to make sure our
business is carried out sustainably, ethically and responsibly.
We want to make a difference in the wider community, going
further for the communities we work in. We invest in activities
that support our communities and open up opportunities for
our customers to improve their lives. We can’t always do this
ourselves and so we work closely with partners across a
number of sectors to maximise our impact.
In 2017/18 we:
•

•

•

•

•

•

Helped 29 customers or community organisations through
our Aspire Awards. The awards totalled over £84,000, which
assisted funding training, equipment and community initiatives.
Led the way in promoting and supporting our Women in
Maintenance project in conjunction with the Mears Group,
appointing more tradeswomen as ambassadors to work
with schools and colleges and hosting regular focus groups
for tradeswomen and colleagues across the sector.
Granted funding to hundreds of projects as part of our
‘Amazing Estates’ programme, enhancing the environments
on our estates to improve the attractiveness, functionality
and safety of Guinness’s estates for our customers.
Provided funding for the ‘Raising Hackney’ community
centre, working with our partner Mancunian Way, the
anti-social behaviour reduction charity, to create engaging
activities and services that support the local community, with
a focus on generating funding for the centre in the long term.
Helped to run the food pantry in Sheffield and the new
food pantry in Salford, supporting members who use an
affordable shopping service while accessing support for
debt and other issues.

In the coming year we plan to do more work to support and
enhance our communities by identifying new national and local
partnerships across our geography.

Value for Money
At Guinness we are committed to delivering and demonstrating
Value for Money (VfM) in everything we do. This is led by the
Board but is a commitment shared across the whole
organisation. Our approach to VfM is embedded in our corporate
strategy, previously Destination 2018 and now Guinness 2023.
We promote a value focused culture throughout the
organisation through leadership by example, training and
individual objective setting. Achieving VfM is a key aspect of
the Guinness culture and responsibility for delivering it rests
with all employees and is embedded in the way we all work.
Reporting on Value for Money
In April 2018 the new VfM Standard issued by the Regulator
for Social Housing came into effect, this new Standard requires
Guinness, as a registered social housing provider, to publish
performance against our own metrics and targets, the
seven metrics defined by the Regulator in the new Standard,
and to provide a comparison against our peers where relevant.
Comparing our performance
The use of benchmarking information is an important way in
which we understand our relative levels of performance and
costs. We compare how we are doing in a number of ways:
1. Against other Registered Providers (RPs) through
participation in the Sector Scorecard pilot and
through unit cost analysis published by the Regulator.

The Sector Scorecard
The Sector Scorecard is an initiative to objectively benchmark
housing associations' performance and demonstrate the value
for money delivered. The Sector Scorecard approach was
initiated by housing associations which demonstrates the
sector's commitment to enhancing transparency and
comparability of performance for the benefit of customers
and other stakeholders.

Scorecard metric
2018
2017
2016
Median
National
					
benchmark
Provider
					
(2017)
benchmark
						
(2017)

Operating margin (overall)*

31.4%

37.3%

34.5%

30.3%

23.6%

Operating margin (social housing lettings)

32.9%

36.7%

35.0%

31.6%

27.5%

EBITDA-MRI (as a percentage of interest)*

185.8%

240.2%

218.0%

227.6%

238%

376

574

908

40

841

0.6%

0.9%

1.5%

1.1%

1.8%

37.2%

38.4%

37.9%

41.6%

42.0%

78%

77%

76%

86.6%

78.9%

Investment in properties as a percentage 					
of the value of total properties held*
4.18%
6.66%
8.71%
New measure

New measure

Investment in communities

New supply delivered (absolute)
Units developed (as a percentage of units owned)*
Gearing*
Customers satisfied with the service
provided by their social housing provider

£1,423,000

£1,562,000

£1,706,000

New measure

New measure

3.6%

4.5%

4.5%

4.00%

4.00%

98.95%

99.27%

98.98%

99.50%

99.20%

Ratio of responsive repairs to planned
maintenance spend

0.57

0.68

0.77

0.68

0.94

Headline social housing cost per unit*

£3,159

£2,830

£3,170

£3,306

£4,360

100.5%

100.4%

99.3%

99.72%

100.20%

14.7%

14.8%

15.4%

12.33%

12.75%

Return on capital employed (ROCE)*
Occupancy

Provided an outreach service in partnership with Mancunian
Way to reduce youth anti-social behaviour in Gorton Way,
Manchester, by offering activities which target young people
not in education or work.

2. Using the Global Accounts unit cost analysis
benchmarking against peer housing associations to
compare our financial performance and capital structure.

Overheads as a percentage of adjusted turnover

•

Participated in a jointly funded project with other housing
providers in a significantly challenging area of Salford to
reduce anti-social behaviour, directly engaging young people
and families and referring them into wider support available.

3. Internally against targets, budgets and key performance
indicators; these are set to be challenging but realistic so
that improvement in both performance and costs can be
achieved and progress understood over time.

* these indicators are the seven included within the updated
VfM Regulatory Standard.

•

Funded a successful community garden in Alfreton,
Derbyshire, to prevent local fly tipping.

•

Worked with the Active Communities Network on a sports,
support and engagement project, achieving a reduction in
youth anti-social behaviour and increasing referrals to other
support agencies.

•

Helped 435 customers with £84,000 from our hardship
fund.
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Going forward we will also compare our performance for
the seven metrics covered by the VfM Regulatory Standard
against other Registered Providers. For the current year we
have reported performance against the metrics as required
by the new regulatory standard within the Sector Scorecard
reporting shown on the opposite page and will conduct
comparisons to appropriate benchmarks when these are
released later in the year.

The first set of benchmarking results across 15 indicators was
issued during 2017/18 in respect of performance for the
financial year to 31 March 2017. Over 315 housing providers,
owning over 80% of UK housing association properties,
participated in the Sector Scorecard pilot. TGPL’s performance
over the last five years relative to available 2017 benchmarks is
shown in the table below:

Rent collected

Guinness performs better than, or close to the sector median
level for 2017/18, in eight of the thirteen indicators where
a benchmark was available. The significant metrics where
Guinness performed less well compared to the pilot group
were on level of customer satisfaction (78% compared to a
median of 86.6%), the level of development of new homes as a
proportion of total stock (0.6% compared to a median of 1.1%).
Our social housing unit costs continue to compare favourably
against those of other housing providers. The merger with
Wulvern Housing in January 2017 means that the 2016/17 unit
cost results were lower than would otherwise be expected,
as the 2016/17 financial statements contained only two months
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of Wulvern costs but all of the Wulvern properties as at the
balance sheet date. The apparent increase in unit costs for
TGPL in 2017/18 reflects a full year of expenditure relating to
the ex-Wulvern properties and also an increase in the amount
spent on our existing homes through our stock investment
programmes.
The sector median benchmark results shown in the previous
table includes data from housing associations of all sizes and
geographical spread, so Guinness has undertaken additional
and more focused comparisons with those who have a national
property portfolio with associated benchmark data provided
in the table below. Our further analysis demonstrates that
the larger and national providers have on average larger
development programmes than Guinness and lower levels of
customer satisfaction than the sector as a whole. Guinness’s
performance against the key financial metrics remains good
when compared to other national providers.
Preparation of the Guinness 2023 Strategy was informed
in part by our performance relative to our peers in a number
of the Sector Scorecard measures. In our new Strategy we
continue to focus on delivering high levels of customer service,
to significantly increase the scale of delivery of new homes and
to continue to deliver healthy but sustainable levels of financial
performance.
The Global Accounts unit cost data
Cost data has been produced by the Homes and Communities
Agency (HCA) (now Homes England) based on the Sector
Global Accounts for the last two years. The Group Audit and
Risk Committee and the Board have considered this data,
compared our performance between the years, against the
quartile data and against our peer associations. The unit cost
data for TGPL for the period to 31 March 2017 is compared
to sector benchmarks below:
Entity
		
		
		

Headline social		
housing cost
Management
CPU
CPU
(£k)
(£k)

We continue to focus our efforts to reduce our costs per unit,
particularly management costs. We will do this by making further
improvements to the way we deliver services through better
procurement and better use of technology. As we grow through
development, stock acquisition or merger over the next five years
we aim to spread our costs across more homes thus reducing
our unit costs further.
Key priorities for 2018/19
The 2018/19 financial year is the first year of the Guinness 2023
Strategy and will build on the strong foundations created over
the last three years.
We have set ourselves a number of challenging targets which will
help us make a strong start towards achieving our five year goals
and will enable us to demonstrate continued delivery of value for
money as detailed below:
•

Increase levels of customer satisfaction to 80%.

•

Complete 700 new homes during the year with a further
1,000 starting on site.

•

Increase levels of employee engagement to 78%.

•

Deliver an operating margin of 30%.

We will also complete the sale and transfer of homes in the
North East of England and the Midlands to other Registered
Providers which will enable us to increase focus on our core
geography. These sales will provide funds to support our new
development activities.

Service		
charge
Maintenance
CPU
CPU
(£k)
(£k)

Major
repairs
CPU
(£k)

Other social
housing costs
CPU
(£k)

TGPL 16/17

2.83

1.23

0.27

0.65

0.46

0.22

TGPL 15/16

3.17

1.26

0.32

0.78

0.57

0.24

Upper quartile

4.33

1.15

0.60

1.11

0.96

0.51

Median

3.30

0.94

0.37

0.93

0.68

0.24

Lower quartile

2.93

0.74

0.24

0.78

0.49

0.10

TGPL result

Delaney Heights,
Salford

Our costs per unit (CPU) fall into the median to lower quartile
range in the majority of categories, with every category improving
in a year-on-year comparison and when compared to the median.
As we have noted the 2016/17 financial year contained financial
costs relating to only two months of the newly merged Wulvern
Housing and all of the Wulvern properties, which has artificially
reduced the unit costs in that year.

Lower quartile

					
Median

Upper quartile
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Financial review
Statement of Comprehensive Income
The Group generated an overall surplus, after taxation, of
£53.8m for the year ended 31 March 2018. This represents
a net surplus of 14% (2017: 22%) on turnover of £374.0m.
Underlying operating performance was strong with the Group
achieving an operating margin of 29% (2017: 30%), which
demonstrates that whilst regulated rents were reduced by a further
1%, the Group has continued to effectively manage its cost base.
Our overall surplus for the year reduced by £40.6m compared to
the prior year which is reflective of the nature of our development
programme. A significant number of homes for outright sale
were completed and sold in the prior year which was not
expected to be repeated during the year to 31 March 2018.
The Group results for the current year incorporate a full year’s
income and expenditure associated with the homes acquired as
part of the merger with Wulvern Housing Association in January
2017, results for the prior year include income and costs for only
the final two months of the year.
We delivered a 183% (2017: 240%) EBITDA-MRI margin as
a percentage of interest payable. The core business therefore
continues to perform strongly and can comfortably cover the
level of investment required to keep our homes in good
condition. The decrease in the volume of property sales during
2017/18 is the main driver of the reduced margin this year.
Our mainstream social housing business continues to perform
well with Group turnover from social housing lettings increasing
by £21.3m to £336.1m (2017: £314.8m), largely due to the
merger with Wulvern Housing in January 2017.
The operating surplus generated from social housing letting
activities was £110.4m with related operating costs increasing
by £26.9m. This reflects a full year of management and
maintenance costs associated with the additional properties
which were acquired by the Group as a result of the merger
with Wulvern in January 2017.
We have continued to target reductions in controllable operating
costs over a three year period so that we can invest more in the
development of new homes in the future.
Turnover from our other social housing activities has decreased
to £13.9m (2017: £23.2m) with lower income from first tranche
property sales and from care and support services when
compared to the prior year.
Our income from non-social housing activities, in particular
market sales, has also decreased this year, reflecting the lower
volume of homes for outright sale completed and sold during
the year. The surplus from market sales contributed £4.5m
(2017: £22.7m) towards the overall surplus.
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Our surplus on property sales including second and subsequent
staircasing and the disposal of surplus properties contributed a
further £5.8m (2017: £9.7m) as part of our active asset
management strategy. Net interest charges for the year
totalled £60.8m (2017: £58.1m).
Our strong financial performance has continued to support the
V1 rating for financial viability from the Regulator of Social Housing
and will contribute towards our capacity to build more new homes
over the next five years.

The Guinness Partnership Group

Our Statement of Financial Position is strong with total reserves
at 31 March 2018 of £723.1m (2017: £663.5m). This reflects a
measured approach to growth in recent years, sound long term
investment decisions and a focus on ensuring that the Group
retains a strong liquidity position at all times.
The Group owns and manages over 66,000 properties, with the
value of the Group’s housing properties at historic cost increasing
by £53.8m (net) over the last year to £3,707.1m. £62.0m was
spent on the development of new affordable housing with £29.0m
invested in capital works to our existing properties.
Stock has increased during the year from £28.5m to £34.2m,
mainly as a result in increased investment in properties under
development for shared ownership and for outright sale.

Turnover from social housing activities
Turnover from non-social housing activities

2014
£m

350.0

338.0

341.7

319.2

273.4
18.7

24.0

92.1

84.4

45.1

130.3

124.2

100.2

79.9

Net interest charges

(60.8)

(58.1)

(58.1)

(51.6)

(53.1)

46.3

72.2

66.1

48.6

26.8

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

5.8

9.7

11.7

8.2

65.3

Fair value and re-measurement movements

2.1

(1.6)

(15.6)

(4.9)

-

-

14.9

-

-

-

Surplus for the year before taxation

Gain on transfer of engagements

54.2

95.2

62.2

51.9

92.1

Taxation charge

(0.4)

(0.8)

-

-

(0.6)

Surplus for the year after taxation

53.8

94.4

62.2

51.9

91.5

3,101.4

3,085.3

2,829.2

2,765.2

2,817.3

-

-

-

-

(1,423.1)

71.2

62.2

46.2

38.3

21.0

Summary: Statement of Financial Position
Assets less current liabilities
Housing and other fixed assets
Grant
Fixed asset investment (including bond issue and
Debt Service Reserve) and investment properties
Intangible assets

-

-

-

1.8

2.1

13.1

6.7

8.9

22.8

40.0

3,185.7

3,154.2

2,884.3

2,828.1

1,457.3

2,462.6

2,490.7

2,313.9

2,318.8

999.4

723.1

663.5

570.4

509.3

457.9

3,185.7

3,154.2

2,884.3

2,828.1

1,497.3

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

219%

287%

339%

240%

331%

183.0%

240.2%

218.0%

184.8%

146.9%

29%

30%

29%

28%

27%

Interest cover (underlying operating surplus
+ depreciation) / net interest

267%

272%

329%

227%

215%

Gearing % (total borrowing / total net worth –
reserves plus capital grant)

56.4%

57.2%

50.0%

54.9%

53.4%

Gearing % (as defined in the Sector Scorecard)

34.9%

36.7%

37.9%

37.8%

33.1%

Financed by
Loans, other long term creditors and provisions
Reserves

At 31 March 2018, the Group had outstanding bank and debt
facilities of £1,248.0m, a reduction of £13.9m over the year as some
loans were repaid using cash and other available facilities as part of
our Treasury Management Strategy. At 31 March 2018, the Group
had undrawn loan facilities totalling £418.0m, which together with
our available cash balances provide good levels of liquidity to
support our development aspirations over the next five years.

Key Financial Ratios

The table on the following page provides a summary of the Group’s
results and key financial indicators for the last five years.

2015
£m

107.1

The Group’s trade and other debtors have decreased year-on-year
with a balance as at 31 March 2018 of £20.3m, (2017: £31.4m),
reflecting the conversion of a significant 2017 debtor to cash following
successful completion of a development scheme during 2017/18.

We have reviewed the value of our properties and fixed assets,
and considered any changes in the economic and policy
environment, projected income, demand, or, market value where
applicable, for indicators of impairment. We have written down
the value of our remaining care homes at the year-end as these
are expected to be sold in early 2018/19. No additional material
impairments have been identified in the current year.

2016
£m

Operating surplus

Net current assets
At 31 March 2018, the Group had cash balances totalling
£78.9m, (2017: £73.9m), this cash is deposited with a range
of counterparties who meet our counterparty credit criteria.
The cash is invested with deposit terms of no more than 30 days.

2017
£m

Summary: Statement of Comprehensive Income

Surplus after interest

Statement of Financial Position

2018
£m

Underlying earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation
and Amortisation (EBITDA) as % of interest payable
(excluding loan redemption penalties)
EBITDA-MRI (as a percentage of interest)
Operating margin*

* operating margin here differs to the Sector Scorecard calculation as this relates to the Group.
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Treasury Management

Regulation and Governance

Strong treasury management is critical to maintaining our
financial resilience. The Group Treasury Management Policy
is updated and submitted annually to the Group Board for
approval. The Group Audit and Risk Committee and the Group
Board review treasury performance on a quarterly basis. This
includes a review of compliance with financial covenants, interest
rate management and liquidity projections. As at 31 March 2018,
the Group complied with all financial covenants in place.

Regulation

Financing
At 31 March 2018, the Group had total loan facilities
of £1,564.2m of which £1,146.2m had been drawn
(2017: £1,624.3m of which £1,057.3m had been drawn).
Interest rate management
In accordance with the Group’s Interest Rate Management
Strategy and in order to mitigate the risks of rises in variable
interest rates, at 31 March 2018, 77.7% of the Group’s debt
was at rates fixed with a range of maturities between one and
31 years (2017: 80.0%). Of this fixed rate debt, 12.4%
(2017: 12.0%) was hedged under ISDA agreements.
As at 31 March 2018, 68.0% (2017: 72.0%) of the Group’s
properties were charged as loan security.
Liquidity
The Group’s Treasury Management Policy dictates that the
Group’s available secured facilities and cash balances must be
no less than the forecast cash outflow for the next twelve months.
The Group met this policy requirement throughout 2017/18.
Based on current forecasts the Group has sufficient facilities
available to meet expenditure requirements until March 2021.
At year-end, the Group held cash balances totalling £78.9m
(2017: £73.9m) of which £66.0m (2017: £68.1m) was held on
term deposits of up to three months at average interest rates
of 0.1% (2017: 0.3%).
Capital and reserves
The reserves of the Group at 31 March 2018 totalled £723.1m
(2017: £663.5m). The Group generates surpluses each year
which are reinvested into existing homes, communities,
services and the development of new homes, with some
provision for contingencies. The Group Board is satisfied that
the reserves at 31 March 2018 are at a level that is appropriate
for the business.
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The entities which are Registered Providers are regulated
by the Regulator of Social Housing (RSH). Those which
are Community Benefit Societies, whether charitable or
non-charitable, are also registered with and regulated by
the Financial Conduct Authority.
The RSH requires The Guinness Partnership Limited (TGPL)
and other Registered Providers in the Group to comply with its
Governance and Viability and Consumer Standards. It requires
the Boards of each Registered Provider to formally assess
compliance with the Governance and Viability Standard on
an annual basis. The Board confirms that this has been carried
out for the year ended 31 March 2018 and that TGPL and other
Registered Providers within the Group comply with the Standard.
The RSH assesses TGPL’s compliance with the Governance
and Viability Standard and publishes its assessment of
compliance. Following a recent In Depth Assessment (IDA)
performed by the Regulator our G1 and V1 regulatory ratings
were re-affirmed in May 2018.
Guinness Care and Support Limited is a charitable Community
Benefit Society and Registered Provider. It is also registered
with and regulated by the Care Quality Commission.
TGPL is the corporate trustee of The Guinness Trust which is
registered with and regulated by the Charity Commission. The
Guinness Trust does not form part of the consolidated Group
financial statements.
Boards and Committees
The Board of TGPL is the Group’s ultimate governing body
and meets at least six times per year. It is responsible for:
•

Setting the Group Strategy and Business Plan and
monitoring performance on a regular basis;

•

Approving budgets and the long-term financial plan;

•

Championing the Group’s vision, values and a positive
culture for the Group with strong customer focus;

•

Ensuring overall financial viability and integrity of the Group
and that appropriate financial control and risk management
mechanisms are in place; and

•

Approving the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, which include those of TGPL.

All legal entities within the Group have Boards which take
responsibility for the strategic, operational and financial
performance of the entity.

The Board reviews its performance formally and regularly
to ensure it is fulfilling its responsibilities and to identify where
additional skills or expertise may be needed. During the year
an external Board Effectiveness Review was carried out,
reporting to the Remuneration and Nominations Committee
and then to the TGPL Board in May 2018. An internal Board
skills assessment was also completed with the results reported
to the Remuneration and Nominations Committee in May 2018.
Board and Committee members’ appraisals are conducted
every two years with the next review in 2018/19, the results
of these reviews informing the Board’s development plan for
the coming year.
Newly appointed Board and Committee members take part in a
programme of induction to ensure that they have the necessary
knowledge and understanding of our sector and activities.
The Guinness Partnership Limited Board –
composition and meetings
The Board comprises eight non-executive directors plus the
Group Chief Executive. Members are appointed by the Board
following recommendation from the Remuneration and
Nominations Committee to serve for a term of three years.

As at 31 March 2018, The Guinness Partnership Board had
nine members. There were no new appointments or other
changes in membership during the year.
Board and Committee Members bring a wide range of
strengths, skills and experience to our Boards and
Committees. Details of Board and Committee members’
experience and main commitments are presented on page 74
and are also available at www.guinnesspartnership.com,
together with similar information for the Executive Team.
The Board and the Remuneration and Nominations Committee
keep the composition of the Board, Committees and the
Boards of subsidiaries under regular review to ensure that the
appropriate balance of skills, relevant experience, independence
and knowledge is maintained to enable them to fulfil their
duties and responsibilities effectively.
The Board selection process ensures that non-executive
members of the Board, the Boards of subsidiaries and
Committees have the experience and skills to be able
to debate and constructively challenge development of
strategy and evaluation of performance against objectives,
as appropriate to their role. The Board skills assessment has
identified areas for focus which recruitment to the TGPL Board
will seek to address during 2018/19.

Non-Executive Board Members’ remuneration and meeting attendance
							
TGPL
Name /
TGPL
Group Audit
Service & Remuneration Health, Safety & Board meeting
remuneration
Board
& Risk
Performance & Nominations Environmental
attendance

Number of meetings
in 2017/18
Neil Braithwaite
£26,786
Peter Cotton
£18,000
Mike Petter
£16,000
Samantha Pitt
£16,000
John Lougher
£12,500

8

4

4

Chair		
Chair

4

4

		88%

Deputy
Chair			
Chair		88%
		

Chair

100%

Chair				100%
				

100%

Laure Duhot
£12,500

				
100%

Mandy Calvert
£12,500

				
100%

Phil Morgan
£12,500

					
100%
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Committees

•

Executive Steering Group for Business Change –
oversees and monitors the progress of key strategic and
transformational change programmes and projects across
Guinness and reviews, evaluates and approves significant
capital expenditure (non-property related).

•

Group Risk Panel – monitors exposure to risk, and
embeds a culture of risk awareness and management
across Guinness.

The Guinness Partnership Board is supported by four
functional committees.
The Group Audit and Risk Committee meets four times a year
and is responsible for monitoring and reporting to the Board on
the Group’s systems of internal control and risk assurance, and
for overseeing internal and external audit.
The Remuneration and Nominations Committee meets at least
twice a year, and is responsible to the Board for considering and
making recommendations on Board and Committee membership,
the appointment of the Chairs of subsidiary company Boards
and senior executive remuneration and appointments across the
Group. It also commissions reviews of Board effectiveness and
individual Board member appraisals.

Executive pay and reward

The Service and Performance Committee meets four
times a year and is responsible for monitoring the quality
and performance of the services provided to customers. This
includes overseeing the provision of services to leaseholders
and shared owners as it reflects our aim to deliver a consistent
service to all Guinness customers.

The overall framework and policy is determined by the
Remuneration and Nominations Committee. This Committee
is also responsible for recommending proposed remuneration
and any contractual changes relating to the terms and
conditions of employment of the Group Chief Executive.

The Health, Safety and Environmental Committee meets a
minimum of four times a year and is responsible for ensuring
a robust and embedded approach to health and safety and
the environment including compliance with relevant legislation.
The Executive Team
The Group is managed by the Executive Team led by the
Group Chief Executive. Meetings are attended by the Executive
Directors for Customer Services, Asset Management, Property
Services, Finance, Development, Corporate Services and the
Managing Director of Guinness Care & Support Limited. The
Executive Team meets fortnightly and attends all meetings of
the TGPL Board.
For salary disclosure purposes, members of the Executive
Team are referred to as Directors. However, with the exception
of the Group Chief Executive who is a member of the Board
of TGPL, they are not regarded as Directors of TGPL for
legal purposes.

We take independent professional advice when setting
executive pay. We also consider executive pay in the context
of sector benchmarks, taking into account the need to attract
and retain suitably qualified people to lead an organisation of
our size and complexity.

Information on employees in salary bands above £60,000
is set out on page 48.
Code of Governance
The Group Board and the Boards of the Registered Providers
within the Group have a Code of Governance which complies
with the National Housing Federation’s 2015 Code.
We are required to confirm our compliance with the Code
or explain any non-compliance with it. We were compliant
with the Code for 2017/18 except in respect of the Code’s
requirement that the maximum term for non-executive members
should normally be nine years. At 1 April 2018 the total service
of Jim Dickson as a Board Member of Guinness Care and
Support Limited was in excess of nine years, his current term
of appointment is due to expire on 30 September 2018.
There are comprehensive governance policies in place which
apply to Board and Committee members as well as employees
and engaged customers. Board and Committee members are
remunerated and signed agreements for services are in place.

Executive Directors lead key groups which play important roles
in the governance of the Group:
•

Project Review Group – oversees and monitors our
development and regeneration programme and reviews,
evaluates and approves all property-related investment
and divestment across TGPL, including property
acquisition, development activity, regeneration activity,
stock transfer and sales activity.
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Transparency and openness
The Guinness Partnership is committed to being open and
transparent in how we conduct our business and interact with
our customers and other stakeholders and we publish a range
of information relating to our approach to transparency and
sharing information.

•

Opposing slavery and human trafficking, with a
commitment to doing what we can to combat such
abuses in our business or in our supply chains.

•

Acting ethically and with the highest standards of integrity,
quality, probity, openness and accountability in all our
business operations and relationships.

•

Developing, implementing and enforcing processes and
controls that seek to ensure slavery and human trafficking is
not taking place within our business or in our supply chains.

•

Not knowingly dealing with any business involved in slavery
or human trafficking.

Fraud, anti-bribery and whistle blowing
We are committed to maintaining the highest ethical standards
in our business activities and we adopt a zero tolerance
approach towards any form of corruption. We embed this
through our policies and employee training frameworks.
•

•

•

•

Fraud – any instance of suspected fraud is investigated and
where appropriate reported to the relevant authorities
including internal audit, external audit, our Regulator and
the police. Our anti-fraud policy covers the prevention,
detection, investigation, and reporting of fraud, including
remedial action if a fraud has occurred, in order to learn
lessons and prevent a recurrence. Our policies and
procedures also address tenancy fraud and we have
dedicated Tenancy Enforcement roles in our structure.
Anti-Bribery and anti-corruption – we adopt a zero
tolerance approach to any form of bribery or corruption.
Our anti-bribery and anti-corruption policy applies to all
entities within the Group and all relationships entered into
between members of the Group and third parties.
Anti-Money Laundering – our anti-money laundering policy
ensures that Guinness is compliant with anti-money
laundering legislation and that its employees are aware of
the requirements of the legislation. This protects Guinness
from the effects of money-laundering and demonstrates
that we are committed to maintaining an honest, open and
transparent environment.
Whistle Blowing – we have a staff whistleblowing policy
which enables all employees or others with serious
concerns over any aspect of our work or conduct to
come forward and express those concerns.

Modern Slavery Act 2015
We are committed to achieving a greater understanding of
our supply chains to identify and prevent slavery or human
trafficking. We have published a Statement in accordance with
the Modern Slavery Act 2015. It applies to all entities that form
part of The Guinness Partnership Group and sets out our
commitment to:

Risk Area

Adverse impact of the UK’s decision to leave the European Union

Risk Detail

•
•
•

Comments &
risk mitigation

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Risk Area

Major Health & Safety Failure

Risk Detail

•
•
•
•

Death or serious injury of customers, employees, contractors or members of the public.
Regulatory non-compliance, resulting in downgrade or other intervention leading to reputational damage.
Legal action against the organisation or individuals.
Increased insurance premiums.

Comments &
risk mitigation

•

We operate a recognised Health & Safety Management System which meets the requirement of
OHSAS 18001.
There is a comprehensive health & safety framework and policy in place. We ensure adherence to
this through a programme of inspections carried out by suitably qualified staff and supported by
external expertise as necessary.
Our staff undertake mandatory health & safety training relevant to their roles, the completion of which
is carefully monitored, and is repeated at appropriate frequencies.
Our Staff Health & Safety Panel meets regularly to identify issues and drive improvements.
We have regular communication and liaison with regulatory authorities, including London Fire
Brigade to ensure we can anticipate and meet their requirements.

General Data Protection Regulation
Guinness is committed to ensuring we fully implement the
requirements of the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)
effective from 25 May 2018. A detailed programme of work,
supported by external expertise where appropriate, is
underway across the Group to ensure we meet the
requirements of the new regulations.

Risk management
The Group has an established and embedded risk
management framework that is actively used throughout the
business. The Risk and Risk Management Strategy is reviewed
and updated annually and fully aligns with the TGPL corporate
strategy and Business Plan. The Strategy defines the Board’s
risk appetite and tolerance.

•

•

The TGPL Board, Group Audit and Risk Committee and the
Executive Team regularly review the key risks faced by the
business, categorised between:
•

Strategic risks

•

Operational risks

•

Financial risks

•

Compliance risks

•
•

We regularly update and stress test our financial plans.
We undertake horizon scanning with regular reports to the Board and Executive Team.
We undertake regular monitoring and reporting of sales and market performance, risk and exposure.
We maintain ongoing communication with employees and customers.
The Executive Team and Project Review Group considers and approves major investment decisions.
We undertake competitive tendering for construction contracts.
We undertake regular recruitment monitoring.

Risk Area

Pension liabilities impact on financial health

Risk Detail

•
•
•

A Group Risk Panel meets quarterly and plays an active part in
monitoring exposure to risk, and embedding a culture of risk
awareness and risk management amongst staff. All directorates
and subsidiaries within the Group have detailed risk plans in
place which include strategies for managing and mitigating key
business risks. Additionally, all major projects have a risk plan:

•
Comments &
risk mitigation

•
•
•
•

22 The Guinness Partnership

Shortage of labour in the care sector which impacts our ability to deliver services to our customers.
Shortage of labour and rising costs of material in the construction sector limits the deliverability of
development schemes.
Weak or falling house prices increase the risk of not achieving the levels of cross subsidy assumed in
our Financial Plan.

The costs of defined benefit pension schemes become unsustainable.
Financial performance is affected by a sudden cessation event.
Business cases for potential Mergers & Acquisitions are undermined by the pension liabilities
of transferred employees.
Organisational change activity is frustrated by potential pension debt cessation triggers.
The Group Audit and Risk Committee and the Remuneration and Nominations Committee are
actively engaged in long-term pension strategy development.
Schemes and membership numbers are under regular review and any appropriate recommended
actions are implemented on a timely basis.
We take professional advice from external consultants to identify and manage risks.
Property security is provided to reduce deficit reduction payments.
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Risk Area

Adverse impact of Welfare Reform on financial health

Risk Detail

•
•

Increased rent arrears, bad debts and cost of rent collection.
Increased level of voids and evictions.

Comments &
risk mitigation

•

Cross-functional welfare reform steering and project groups are in place with action plans and
project resource to ensure a coordinated approach.
We undertake stress testing to assess the extent to which Guinness can absorb the impact of
Welfare Reform and to determine the extent of any mitigations required.
We have re-designed Customer Service structures which include greater emphasis on prevention
of debt.
We carry out tenancy sustainment activities designed to mitigate impacts on customers of
Welfare Reform.

•
•
•

Risk Area

Information management incident or security breach

Risk Detail

•
•
•
•
•

Loss of corporate information or sensitive personal information.
Fines or other Regulatory action by the Information Commissioner.
Customer impact including possible distress or financial loss.
Reputational damage and increased media interest.
Inability to comply with new General Data Protection regulation (GDPR) regulatory/legislative
requirements.

•

Information management policies and guidance are in place supported by mandatory training
for all staff.
We have a focused organisation wide GDPR Action Plan and roadmap, supported by external
benchmarking and review.
Customer security protocols to identify telephone callers are in place.
Contracts of employment reflect specific data protection responsibilities.
Desktop infrastructure is protected by hardware and virus protection, with hard disk encryption
on all portable devices.

Comments &
risk mitigation

•
•
•
•

Internal controls assurance

Key elements of our internal control framework include:

The Board has overall responsibility for establishing and maintaining
the system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness.
This applies in respect of all companies within the Group.

•

Board meetings are held regularly and there is a defined
schedule of matters reserved for decision by the Board.

•

Adoption of the NHF Governance Code. This is supported
by a framework of policies and procedures which employees
and Board members must comply with. These cover areas
such as delegated authority, segregation of duties, accounting,
treasury management, health and safety, data and asset
protection, money laundering, fraud prevention and
detection and bribery.

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk
and to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that
key business objectives and expected outcomes will be
achieved. It also exists to give reasonable assurance about
the preparation and reliability of financial information and the
safeguarding of the Group’s assets and interests.
In meeting its responsibilities, the Board has adopted a
risk-based approach to internal controls which is embedded
within normal management and governance processes. This
approach includes the regular evaluation of the nature and
extent of risks to which the Group is exposed.
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•

Internal audit assurance provided by an independent firm of
professional advisors. Internal control and risk management
frameworks are subject to regular review by Internal Audit
which is responsible for providing independent assurance
to the Board through the Group Audit and Risk Committee.

•

Further independent assurance provided by the work of
the external auditor, as set out in their audit report.

•

Clear responsibilities for the identification, evaluation and
control of risks. The Group Risk Panel, the Executive Team
and the Group Audit and Risk Committee consider risks
throughout the year. The Group Chief Executive and the
Group Audit and Risk Committee are responsible for
reporting any significant changes to the Group Board.

•

Comprehensive anti-fraud policy and procedures are in
place to prevent, detect and report on fraud and recover
assets as appropriate. This is supported by a positive
anti-fraud culture amongst staff, contractors and Board
members. No cases of fraud resulting in a material loss
have occurred during the year.

•

Rigorous procedures are in place to ensure that corrective
action is taken in relation to any significant control issues.

•

Financial reporting procedures include detailed budgets
for the year ahead and forecasts for subsequent years.
The Board regularly reviews key performance indicators to
assess progress towards the achievement of key business
objectives, targets and outcomes.

The Group Audit and Risk Committee reviews reports received
from internal and external auditors. It makes regular reports to
the Board on the extent to which internal controls continue to
take account of the major risks facing the Group. The Group
Audit and Risk Committee submits an annual report,
summarising its work and conclusions to the Board.
In reviewing the effectiveness of internal controls, the Board has
reference to a range of evidence that includes independent
sources, management assurances and outcomes from a range
of risk management activities.
The Group Audit and Risk Committee and Board have received
the Group Chief Executive’s annual review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control for the Group.
The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of
internal control, including risk management, for the year to
31 March 2018, and up to the date of signing these financial
statements. It has not identified any weaknesses sufficient to
cause material misstatement or loss which require disclosure
in the financial statements.

Diversity and inclusion
Our people bring a wide variety of skills and knowledge to
the organisation. We recognise that having a diverse workforce
that reflects the communities we operate in helps us to achieve
our objectives.

At Guinness, we are committed to creating an inclusive work
environment and culture where our employees can achieve
their full potential and in so doing, help us realise our vision
to improve people’s lives. Our People Strategy reflects our
commitment to increasing diversity in all areas of our business
and promoting an inclusive culture.
Our principal aims are to ensure that:
•

Services are designed to respond to the needs of our
current and new customers, and are delivered so as to
promote a culture of mutual respect and understanding
between customers, employees and partners.

•

The Board and managers demonstrate effective leadership
and inclusion.

•

Guinness provides a working environment where
employees succeed and feel valued.

These aims and commitments are integrated into our Strategy and
operating plans and progress is monitored annually by the Board.
Our people have shared values and ways of doing things (the
Guinness Behaviours), but we value diversity because individuality
brings us different skills, perspectives and ways of thinking about
things. Our workforce is diverse and we provide equal
opportunities for all our employees. Our ability to do this relies
on openness and our commitment to hold ourselves to account.

The Gender Pay Gap
We welcome the introduction of gender pay gap reporting under
the Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations
2017 and what it sets out to achieve. We see the transparency
of data as an enabler for change across UK businesses.
Guinness has processes in place to ensure our approach to
paying and rewarding our people is consistent and fair, and to
ensure our employees are treated equally.
We know that minimising the gender pay gap is an important
aspect of ensuring our employees feel equally valued and are able
to realise their potential within a supportive and diverse organisation.
We will continually challenge how we do things and actively remove
barriers that might stop people from succeeding. This is vital to
ensuring the future success of our organisation and our people.
The Guinness Partnership Limited
The 2017 reported gender pay gap for The Guinness
Partnership Limited shows the mean and median gender pay
gap of 6.4% and -4.8% respectively, with a mean and median
bonus gender pay gap of 4.3% and 0.0% respectively.
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We are pleased with the overall gender pay gap results for The
Guinness Partnership Limited, both in their own right and when
compared to external benchmarks. For comparison, the latest
UK-wide figures available from the Office for National Statistics
show the mean and median gender pay gap for the whole
economy of 17.4% and 18.4% respectively; and in the Charities
and Not for Profit sector, these are 9.5% and 8.0% respectively.

environment which includes training in safe working practices
in accordance with the Group’s health and safety policies,
consultation and participation of our employees, effective
allocation of resources, continual performance evaluation, and
monitoring of key risks through our governance structure. Our
risk identification and control environment is regularly reviewed
at operational, tactical and strategic level to ensure it is effective
and we monitor that our policies are operating as intended
through audits, inspections and reviews.

Guinness Property
The 2017 reported gender pay gap for City Response Limited,
trading as Guinness Property, shows the mean and median pay
gap of 21% and 24.9% respectively, with a mean and median
bonus gender pay gap of -25.6% and 0.0% respectively.
Women are under-represented in our repairs business, as they
are across the repairs and construction sectors. We are taking
specific action to address this in Guinness Property through our
Women in Maintenance initiative.
Guinness Care
The 2017 reported gender pay gap for Guinness Care and Support
Limited, trading as Guinness Care, shows the mean and median
pay gap of -3.3% and -0.8% respectively, with a mean and median
bonus gender pay gap of -2.2% and 0.0% respectively.
The workforce within Guinness Care is composed largely of
women (88%) which is reflective of the gender distribution
observed in the wider care sector.

Health and safety
The Group recognises and accepts its legal and moral
responsibilities, as defined by health and safety law and
associated regulations, to ensure the health, safety and welfare
of all of its employees, customers and other persons who may
be affected by the way it carries out its activities.
During 2017/18 we have maintained our strong focus on a
comprehensive health and safety management system that
ensures we comply with all legal and regulatory obligations;
improves our policy and procedural framework; and continuously
reinforces responsibilities among our employees and contractors.
Our management system follows the principles of OHSAS
18001, the Occupational Health and Safety Management System
Standard, ensuring that we strive for continual improvement and
integrate health and safety into our planning, key decisions and
business activities. To ensure our management system’s
effectiveness and ability to achieve its outcomes, strong
emphasis is placed on providing a safe and healthy working

26 The Guinness Partnership

Statement of Board Members’ responsibilities

Disclosure of information to the auditor

The Group Board, which is the Board of The Guinness Partnership
Limited, is responsible for preparing the financial statements.
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with UK
Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice) law, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, and
applicable law.

At the date of making this report, each of the Board members
of The Guinness Partnership Limited, acting in their capacity
as the Group Board, confirm that:
•

So far as each Board member is aware, there is no
relevant audit information needed by the Group’s auditors
in connection with preparing their report of which the
Group’s auditors are unaware; and

•

Each Board member has taken all steps that he or she ought
to have taken as a Board member in order to make himself
or herself aware of any relevant information needed by the
Group’s auditors in connection with their report and to establish
that the Group’s auditors are aware of that information.

In preparing these financial statements, the Board is required to:

Sustainability and protecting the environment
Sustainability has a key role to play in the successful delivery of
our vision and we are committed to providing quality services in a
sustainable manner and to working with our customers to enable
them to make choices to live more sustainable lifestyles and
enjoy a better quality of life. Over the past five years we have
developed our commitment to sustainability and have become a
more sustainable organisation by using environmentally-friendly
products in our house building and repair work and by improving
the energy efficiency of our homes in line with the Government’s
targets. We have also helped our customers save energy and
money by insulating cavity walls and providing loft insulation.
Our Environmental Sustainability and Affordable Warmth Strategy
will be reviewed during 2018/19 and will reflect our commitment
to environmental sustainability, recognising the need to preserve
natural resources and to provide long term benefits to our
customers by tackling fuel poverty and affordable warmth.
The new strategy will support our strategic objectives and will
ensure that we continue to:
•

Improve the energy and water efficiency of our homes,
ensuring they are affordable for our customers to run;

•

Meet all statutory and regulatory requirements;

•

Reduce our environmental footprint; and

•

Reduce the environmental impact of our supply chain.

The new strategy will also outline our vision for the next three
years (2019-2022), ensuring we focus on delivering value for
money services, maximising the availability of grant funding
to support delivery of our objectives, and focus on pursuing
cost neutral actions. Our long term plans to continue to meet
statutory and regulatory requirements will be set out in the
review of our Home Energy Standard, ensuring that by 2030
no home has an EPC rating below C (SAP 69-80).

•

Select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently;

•

Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

•

State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards
have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

•

The Board is responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Group and to enable it to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Co-operative
and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 and the Statement
of Recommended Practice: Accounting by Registered Housing
Providers 2014, and comply with the Accounting Direction for
Private Registered Providers of Social Housing in England
(2015). The Board is also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Nexia Smith & Williamson are the appointed auditor for
the Group. In accordance with the Group’s policy on auditor
independence a re-tender exercise for the appointment of
external auditor to the Group will take place during the 2018/19
financial year.
On behalf of the Board

Neil Braithwaite, Chair of The Guinness Partnership Limited
18 July 2018
Charitable Community Benefit Society No. 31693R
Homes and Communities Agency No. 4729

The Board is responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financial information included on
the Group’s website.
After making all reasonable enquiries, the Board has a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
For this reason the Board continues to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
The Board confirms that to the best of its knowledge:
•

The financial statements, prepared in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards, give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabilities, financial position and surplus or
deficit of the Group; and

•

The Report of the Board includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the Group and the
position of the Group, together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that the Group faces.

Donations
We have made no political donations in the year (2017: £nil).

Prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group
will continue in operation.

External auditor
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Independent Auditor's Report
to the members of The Guinness
Partnership Limited

Opinion

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have audited the financial statements of The Guinness
Partnership Limited (the ‘Partnership’) and its subsidiaries
(the ‘Group’) for the year ended 31 March 2018 which comprise
the Consolidated and Partnership Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Consolidated and Partnership Statement of
Financial Position, the Consolidated and Partnership
Statement of Changes in Reserves, the Consolidated and
Partnership Statement of Cash Flows and the notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102
“The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in
relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

In our opinion the financial statements:
•

give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and the
Partnership’s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of the Group’s
and the Partnership’s result for the year then ended;

•

have been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

•

have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014,
the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies
(Group Accounts) Regulations 1969, the Housing and
Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for
Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group and the Partnership in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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•

•

the Board’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate;
or
the Board has not disclosed in the financial statements any
identified material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s or the Partnership’s ability to
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for
a period of at least twelve months from the date when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the
Report and Consolidated Financial Statements, other than the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board
is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we are required
to report by exception

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters
where the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act
2014 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

•

a satisfactory system of control over transactions has not
been maintained; or

•

the Partnership has not kept proper accounting records; or

•

the financial statements are not in agreement with the books
of account; or

•

we have not received all the information and explanations
we need for our audit.

Responsibilities of the Board
As explained more fully in the Statement of Board Members’
Responsibilities set out on page 27, the Board is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal controls
as the Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Board is responsible
for assessing the Group’s and the Partnership’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board either intend to liquidate the Group
or the Partnership or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
This description forms part of our auditor’s report.
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the Partnership’s members, as a
body, in accordance with section 87 of the Co-operative and
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the Partnership’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Partnership and the Partnership’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

Nexia Smith & Williamson
Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
Date: 18 July 2018
25 Moorgate
London
EC2R 6AY
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Group Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 March 2018

The Guinness Partnership Limited Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 March 2018

				2018		2017
Note			£m		£m

				
2018		
2017
Note			
£m		
£m

Turnover

3		

374.0		430.1

Turnover

3 			
338.3		354.4

Cost of sales

3			

(19.1)		

(73.9)

Cost of sales

3				

(4.0)		

(16.2)

Operating expenditure

3			

(247.8)		

(225.9)

Operating expenditure

3				

(228.1)		

(206.1)

Operating surplus				
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

107.1		130.3

Operating surplus					106.2		132.1

5			

5.8		

9.7

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

5				

6.2		

Interest receivable 				

0.4		

0.4

Interest receivable 					

0.5		

0.6

7			

(61.2)		

(58.5)

7				

(61.0)		

(58.2)

Movement in fair value of financial instruments				

1.6		

(0.3)

Movement in fair value of financial instruments					

1.6		

(0.3)

Re-measurement of pension schemes

27			

0.5		

(1.3)

Re-measurement of pension schemes

27				

0.5		

(1.3)

Gain on transfer of engagements				

-		

14.9

Gain on transfer of engagements					

-		

14.4

Interest payable and financing costs

Surplus before taxation				
Taxation

54.2		95.2

9			(0.4)		(0.8)

Surplus for the year			

53.8		94.4

Other comprehensive income 			
Actuarial gain in respect of pension schemes

Surplus before taxation					54.0		96.7
Taxation

9				
0.1		
(0.8)

Surplus for the year					

54.1		95.9

Other comprehensive income 			

27			

0.9		

0.2

Change in fair value of hedged financial instrument				

4.9		

Total comprehensive income for the year 				

59.6		

All amounts relate to continuing activities. The notes on pages 36 to 72 form part of these financial statements.
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Interest payable and financing costs

9.4

Actuarial gain in respect of pension schemes

27 			

0.9		

0.2

(1.5)

Change in fair value of hedged financial instrument					

4.9		

(1.5)

93.1

Total comprehensive income for the year 				

59.9		94.6

All amounts relate to continuing activities. The notes on pages 36 to 72 form part of these financial statements.
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Group Statement of Financial Position at 31 March 2018

The Guinness Partnership Limited Statement of Financial Position at 31 March 2018

			2018
Note		£m

2018
£m

2017
£m

2017
£m

-		

-

Fixed assets

			2018
Note		£m

2018
£m

2017
£m

2017
£m

-		

-

Fixed assets

Intangible assets and goodwill

13			

Intangible assets and goodwill

13			

Tangible fixed assets: 					

Tangible fixed assets					

Housing properties

10		

3,062.1		

3,045.8

Housing properties

11		

2,971.5		

2,950.4

Other fixed assets

12		

39.3		

39.5

Other fixed assets

12		

37.2		

37.2

				
3,101.4		
3,085.3

				
3,008.7		
2,987.6

Investment properties

14			
0.7		
2.1

Investment properties

14		
0.7			
2.1

Fixed asset investments

15			

Fixed asset investments

15		

70.5			

60.0

Investment in subsidiaries

16		

46.1			

46.1

70.5		

60.1

				
3,172.6		
3,147.5
Current assets 					

				
3,126.0		
3,095.8

Stock

17		34.2		28.5

Current assets 					

Trade and other debtors

18		

20.3		

31.4

Stock

17		
16.9		
8.1

Cash and cash equivalents 			

78.9		

73.9

Trade and other debtors

18		

38.8		

63.1

Cash and cash equivalents 			

37.9		

32.0

			133.4		133.8
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

19		

(120.3)		

			
93.6		
103.2

(127.1)

Net current assets 				
13.1		
6.7
Total assets less current liabilities 				
3,185.7		
3,154.2
Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

20			 (2,411.5)		 (2,435.2)

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

19		

(100.8)		

(112.6)

Net current (liabilities)				
(7.2)		
(9.4)
Total assets less current liabilities 				
3,118.8		
3,086.4

Provisions for liabilities:					

Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

Pension provision

25		(5.6)		(6.3)

Provisions for liabilities:					

Other provisions

26		(45.5)		(49.2)

Pension provision

25		(5.6)		(6.3)

Other provisions

26		(42.0)		(45.1)

				
(51.1)		
(55.5)
Total net assets 				
723.1		663.5

722.9		

				
(47.6)		
(51.4)
Total net assets 				
698.4		638.5

Reserves 					
Income and expenditure reserve				

20			 (2,372.8)		 (2,396.5)

663.3

Restricted reserves 				
0.2		
0.2
Total reserves 				
723.1		663.5

Reserves 					
Income and expenditure reserve				

698.2		

638.3

Restricted reserves 				
0.2		
0.2
Total reserves 				
698.4		638.5

The notes on pages 36 to 72 form part of these financial statements.
These financial statements were approved by the Board on 18 July 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

The notes on pages 36 to 72 form part of these financial statements.
These financial statements were approved by the Board on 18 July 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

Board Member
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Board Member		

Secretary

Board Member

Board Member		

Secretary
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Group Statement of Changes in Reserves for the year ended 31 March 2018

Group and The Guinness Partnership Limited Statement of Cashflows for the year ended 31 March 2018

		 Income and 		Restricted		
Total
		 expenditure		 reserves		
		reserve
		
£m		£m		£m
At 1 April 2016		

570.2		

0.2		

570.4

Total comprehensive income for the year		

93.1		

-		

93.1

Transfer between reserves		

-		

-		

-

At 31 March 2017 		

663.3		

0.2		

663.5

At 1 April 2017		

663.3		

0.2		

663.5

Total comprehensive income for the year		

59.6		

-		

59.6

Transfer between reserves		

-		

-		

-

At 31 March 2018		

722.9		

0.2		

723.1

The notes on pages 36 to 72 form part of these financial statements.

			Group
			2018
Note		£m
Net cash inflow from operating activities

28		152.8

Group
2017
£m

TGPL
2017
£m

156.1

192.1

165.9

Cashflow from investing activities					
Acquisition and construction of housing property			

(89.4)

(88.8)

(69.1)

(68.3)

Purchase of other fixed assets			

(6.7)

(6.4)

(5.9)

(5.2)

Receipt of Government grants			7.2

6.4

1.6

1.5

Receipts from the sale of fixed assets			

22.5

19.2

25.8

24.8

Homebuy and equity loans redeemed			

0.8

0.8

-

-

Investment in subsidiaries			-

-

-

(2.0)

Cash acquired on transfer of engagements			

-

-

7.1

6.6

Tax paid or refunded			

(0.8)

(0.8)

-

-

Payment to Debt Service Reserve			

(11.2)

(11.2)

(12.0)

(12.0)

-

-

(4.0)

(4.0)

Interest received			0.4

0.5

0.4

0.6

			(77.2)

(80.3)

(56.1)

(58.0)

Other investments			

The Guinness Partnership Limited Statement of Changes in Reserves for the year ended 31 March 2018

TGPL
2018
£m

Cashflows from financing activities					
		 Income and 		Restricted		
Total
		 expenditure		 reserves		
		reserve
		
£m		£m		£m
At 1 April 2016		

543.7		

0.2		

543.9

Total comprehensive income for the year		

94.6		

-		

94.6

Transfer between reserves		

-		

-		

-

At 31 March 2017		

638.3		

0.2		

638.5

At 1 April 2017		

638.3		

0.2		

638.5

Total comprehensive income for the year		

59.9		

-		

59.9

Transfer between reserves		

-		

-		

-

At 31 March 2018		

698.2		

0.2		

698.4

Interest paid			(60.6)
New loans			110.0

(60.4)

(59.8)

(59.6)

110.0

8.6

8.6

(117.8)

(117.4)

(54.2)

(54.0)

			 (68.4)

(67.8)

(105.4)

(105.0)

Repayment of loans			

Net change in cash and cash equivalents			7.2

8.0

30.6

2.9

71.7

29.9

41.1

27.0

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year			
78.9

37.9

71.7

29.9

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year			

The notes on pages 36 to 72 form part of these financial statements.

The notes on pages 36 to 72 form part of these financial statements.

34 The Guinness Partnership

Financial Statements 35

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2018

1 Company information

amortised evenly over the Directors’
estimate of its useful economic life.
In preparing the separate financial
The Directors consider whether an
The Guinness Partnership Limited (TGPL)
statements of the parent company,
impairment has taken place at the date
is incorporated in England under the
advantage has been taken of the following
of each Statement of Financial Position
Co-operative and Community Benefit
disclosure exemptions available in FRS 102:
by reference to the income streams
Societies Act 2014 (No 31693R). TGPL
being generated. Impairment losses
is an exempt charity and is registered with
• Disclosures in respect of the parent
are recognised in the Statement of
Homes England as a Private Registered
company’s financial instruments have
Comprehensive Income.
Provider of Social Housing. The registered
not been presented as equivalent
office is 30 Brock Street, Regent’s Place,
disclosures have been provided in
Where there is a business combination
London NW1 3FG.
respect of the Group as a whole; and
that is in substance a gift, any excess of
fair value over the assets received over
• No disclosure has been given for the
the fair value of the liabilities assumed
aggregate remuneration of the key
2 Principal accounting policies
is recognised as a gain in the Statement
management personnel of the parent
of Comprehensive Income. This gain
company as their remuneration is
Basis of accounting
represents the gift of the value of one
included in the totals for the Group
entity to another and shall be recognised
as a whole.
The financial statements have been
as income. Where the fair value of the
prepared in accordance with applicable
liabilities exceeds the fair value of the
United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
assets, the loss represents net obligations
Basis of consolidation
including Financial Reporting Standard
assumed and shall be recognised as
102 – ‘The Financial Reporting Standard
an expense.
The consolidated financial statements
applicable in the UK and Republic of
incorporate the results of The Guinness
Ireland’ (FRS 102), the Statement of
Partnership Limited and all of its subsidiary
Recommended Practice: Accounting by
Going concern
Registered Housing Providers 2014 (SORP undertakings as at 31 March 2018. The
Group has disclosed the balances and
2014), the Housing and Regeneration Act
The Group’s financial statements have
2008, the Accounting Direction for Private nature of transactions with entities that
been prepared on a going concern basis
form part of the Group as required by the
Registered Providers of Social Housing
which assumes an ability to continue
Direction. All intra-Group transactions,
2015 (the Direction) and the Co-operative
operating for the foreseeable future.
balances and income are eliminated
and Community Benefit Societies Act
on consolidation.
2014. The Group is required under the
Co-operative and Community Benefit
Judgements and key sources of
Societies (Group Accounts) Regulations
estimation uncertainty
Business combinations
1969 to prepare consolidated Group
accounts. TGPL is a public benefit entity
The preparation of the financial
When a new entity joins the Group, if the
for the purpose of FRS 102 and the
business combination meets the definition statements requires management to make
financial statements have been prepared
judgements, estimates and assumptions
of a merger under Section 19.6 of FRS
on that basis.
that affect the amounts reported for
102, the entity has been consolidated
assets and liabilities as at the date of the
using the merger method of accounting.
Statement of Financial Position and the
Accordingly the results, Statements of
Basis of preparation
amounts reported for revenues and
Financial Position and Cashflows of the
expenses during the year and prior year.
combining entities are brought into the
The financial statements have been
financial statements of the combined entity However, the nature of estimation means
prepared on the historical cost basis
that the actual outcomes could differ from
from the beginning of the financial year in
except for the modification to a fair value
those estimates. The following judgements
basis for investment properties and certain which the combination occurred.
(apart from those involving estimates) have
financial instruments as specified in the
If the business combination does not meet had the most significant effect on amounts
accounting policies as set out below.
recognised in the financial statements:
the criteria for merger accounting under
The financial statements are presented
Section 19.6 of FRS 102, then the entity is
in Sterling (£m).
consolidated using acquisition accounting a) Capitalisation of development
expenditure. The Group capitalises
rules. This requires the new entity’s assets
The principal accounting policies are
development expenditure in accordance
and liabilities to be initially recognised at
set out below. These accounting policies
with the accounting policy on housing
have been consistently applied during the fair value. Goodwill is calculated as the
property fixed assets. The capitalisation
difference between the fair value of
current and preceding period unless
requires a range of judgements, such as
consideration and the fair value of net
otherwise stated.
setting the period over which interest
assets acquired. Positive goodwill is
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Parent Company disclosure exemptions

can be capitalised, calculating the
amounts of staff time and overheads
which should be capitalised and
establishing when a scheme is likely
to go ahead, allowing capitalisation of
associated development costs, or
when it is abortive and costs should
be written off.
b) Identification of housing property
components. Housing property
depreciation is calculated on a
component by component basis. The
identification of such components is a
matter of judgement and may have a
material impact on the depreciation
charge. The components selected are
those which reflect how the major
repairs to the property are managed.
c) Categorisation of housing properties
as investment properties or property,
plant and equipment. Classes of
properties within the category of
housing properties that are held to
earn commercial rentals or for capital
appreciation or both are accounted for
as investment properties. Properties
rented to provide social housing and
properties used for the production or
supply of goods and services or for
administrative purposes are classified
as property, plant and equipment.
.

b)

c)

d)

Other key sources of estimation
and assumptions:
a) Acquisition. On 1 February 2017 the
activities of Wulvern Housing Limited
(Wulvern) were transferred to TGPL
through a transfer of engagements.
There was no consideration and, due
to the relative size of the organisation,
has been accounted for using the
acquisition method of accounting. The
assets and liabilities of Wulvern on the
date of transfer were brought into TGPL
at fair value and the net gain taken to
the Statement of Comprehensive
Income in the prior year. The housing
properties, loans and pension asset
were independently valued, but still
required judgement in relation to the
assumptions used. Other assets and
liabilities were included at book values,
as the most appropriate measure of fair
value, and were independently audited.
The Board took the view that the grant

e)

f)

Turnover
creditor should be retained and
accounted for under accruals accounting
as the fair value was a cost to TGPL not Turnover represents rental and service
charge income receivable from properties
a revaluation.
owned, fees and contract income,
donations receivable and revenue grants
Tangible fixed assets. Other than
from public bodies which are credited to
investment properties, fixed assets are
the Statement of Comprehensive Income
depreciated over their useful economic
lives taking into account residual values, in the same period as the expenditure to
where appropriate. The Group uses a which they relate. Turnover also includes
proceeds from properties developed for
range of useful lives for assets and
outright sale and first tranche sale. The
components forming parts of assets
related portion of the shared ownership
as disclosed in the accounting policies.
asset is recognised as cost of sales. Any
Management reviews the estimate of
the useful lives at each reporting date surpluses recognised in the Statement of
to ensure that they remain appropriate. Comprehensive Income are restricted by
the extent to which they subsidise the
social rented portion of a scheme.
Pension and other post-employment
benefits. The cost of defined benefit
Amounts for amortised Government
pension plans and other postgrants which have been released to the
employment benefits are determined
Statement of Comprehensive Income
using actuarial valuations. The actuarial
under the accruals model are also
valuation involves making assumptions
included in turnover.
about discount rates, future salary
increases, mortality rates and future
pension increases.
Sale of tangible fixed assets
Bad debt provision. The debtors
balance in the Group accounts consists Sales of tangible fixed assets, including
second and subsequent tranches of shared
of a large number of small debts.
ownership properties are dealt with in the
Management review the level of the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and
provision made against non-payment
of these debts on a regular basis to take separately disclosed after the operating
account of past and current patterns of surplus for the year.
payment to ensure that the overall
provision is adequate.
Taxation
Housing property impairment.
The tax expense for the period
The Group carries out impairment
assessments and reviews as set out in comprises current and deferred tax.
the accounting policy below. In carrying Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
out this process, management exercise that a change attributable to an item of
judgement in determining if an indicator income or expense recognised as Other
of impairment exists and in assessing the Comprehensive Income or to an item
net book value of each scheme against recognised directly in equity is also
recognised in Other Comprehensive
net realisable value and value in use.
Income or directly in equity respectively.
Assets held for sale. The Group has a
stock balance that includes properties
Value Added Tax (VAT)
for sale under both market and shared
ownership programmes as well as work
The majority of the Group’s income,
in progress for schemes producing
homes for sale. The value of each asset being rents, is exempt from VAT purposes
is reviewed against its net realisable value and this gives rise to a partial exemption
calculation for VAT recovery. All amounts
and each scheme in progress against
expected proceeds less costs yet to be disclosed in the accounts are inclusive of
VAT to the extent that it is suffered by the
incurred and assets are written down if
Group and not recoverable.
the cost at which they are recorded in
the accounts is higher.
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Housing properties fixed assets
and depreciation

Component

Useful economic life

Pitched roofs

60 years

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost,
less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment. Cost comprises purchase
price and building costs together with
directly attributable, incidental and
administrative costs in bringing them into
working condition for their intended use.

Flat roofs

25 years

External doors

25 years

Windows

30 years

Electrical installation

30 years

General heating
(excluding boilers)

30 years

Boilers

15 years

Lifts

25 years

Kitchens

20 years

Interest on borrowings used to finance
housing developments and regeneration
projects is capitalised only when
development activity is in progress and
up to the date of practical completion
or the end of the regeneration period.
Costs of replacing major components
are capitalised and depreciated over
their estimated useful economic lives.
The net book value of components
replaced is written off and disclosed as
depreciation in the year of replacement.
Housing properties under construction are
stated at cost and not depreciated. These
are reclassified as housing properties on
practical completion of construction.
Depreciation is charged so as to write
down the cost of freehold housing
properties, other than freehold land,
to their estimated residual value on a
straight line basis over their expected
useful economic lives.
Housing properties are split between land,
structure and major components which
require periodic replacement. Freehold
land is not depreciated.
The Group depreciates freehold housing
properties by component on a straight line
basis as follows:

Bathrooms
Residual structure (building)

30 years
100 years

housing and shared ownership). Where
there is agreement with Homes England for
a development and the scheme meets our
internal criteria for approval, no impairment
is made. However, if there is a high level of
uncertainty over the use of the land or
where internal criteria are not met then
impairment would be recognised.
Impairment would be recognised to
the extent that market valuations are
lower than the carrying value of the asset.
Property managed by others
The Group has a number of agreements
with third parties to manage schemes on
its behalf. Where a transfer of the risks and
benefits attached to schemes has taken
place, the transactions managed by the
agents are not included in these financial
statements.

The Group depreciates housing properties
held on long leases over the shorter of the
lease term or the useful economic life of the
relevant component category.
Property managed for others
Impairment of housing properties and
land held for future development
Impairment reviews are carried out for
completed properties and properties under
construction where there are indicators of
impairment. Impairments arising from a major
reduction in service potential are charged to
the income and expenditure account to the
extent that the carrying value exceeds the
recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of its net realisable value
and value in use. Value in use is the present
value of future cash flows obtainable as a
result of the continued use of the property.
Properties are grouped together into
schemes, which are considered to be the
cash generating units as defined by the
SORP. At the date of each Statement of
Financial Position, schemes are assessed
to determine if there are indicators of
impairment for each scheme. If such
indicators exist, an impairment review is
carried out for that scheme. If the review
identifies an impairment is needed, it is
recognised immediately in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income.

The Group manages some schemes on
behalf of third parties. Where a transfer of
the risks and benefits attached to schemes
has taken place, the transactions managed
by the Group are included in these financial
statements.

Where assets are financed by hire
purchase contracts and leasing
agreements that give rights approximating
to ownership (finance leases), they are
treated as if they had been purchased
outright. The amount capitalised is the
present value of the minimum lease
payments payable over the term of
the lease. The corresponding leasing
commitments are shown as obligations
to the lessor in creditors. They are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term and their economic useful lives.
Lease payments are analysed
between capital and interest
components so that the interest
element of the payment is charged
to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income over the term of the lease
and is calculated so that it represents
a constant proportion of the balance
of capital repayments outstanding.
The capital part reduces the amounts
payable to the lessor.
Other leases are treated as operating
leases and payments are charged to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income
on a straight line basis over the term of
the lease.

Other tangible fixed assets
Other tangible fixed assets are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is charged on a straight line
basis from the date the asset is put into use
over the expected useful economic lives of
the assets at the following annual rates:
Freehold office premises
Leasehold office
premises
Plant, vehicles and
equipment

1% to 2%
Over the period
of the lease
5% to 33%

Improvements to office premises are
capitalised where the expenditure provides
an enhancement of economic benefits in
excess of the previously assessed
standard of performance.

Impairment reviews for land held for future
development take into account existing plans The useful economic lives of all fixed
assets are reviewed annually.
for developing the land (holdings for social
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Leasing and hire purchase

Investment property
Investment property includes commercial
and other properties not used directly in
furtherance of the Group’s social purpose.
Investment property is measured at cost
on initial recognition, which includes
purchase cost and any directly attributable
expenditure, and subsequently at fair
value at the reporting date. Fair value
is initially determined by external valuers
and derived from the current market
rents and investment property yields for
comparable real estate. This is adjusted if
necessary for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset.
Fair values are determined on an annual
basis, determined by external valuers at
least once every three years.

Social housing and other
Government grants
Where developments have been financed
wholly or partially by Social Housing and
other Grants (SHG), the amount of the
grant received has been included as
deferred income and recognised in turnover
over the estimated useful economic life of
the associated asset structure in
accordance with the accruals model.

expenses. The Group provides for bad
and doubtful debts relating to rents and
service charges receivable at the
following rates:
Former tenant arrears

100%

Current tenant arrears

20% to 100%

The Group provides against other debtors
based on an assessment of likely recovery.

Homebuy and equity loans

Non-Government grants

These represent loans to home buyers of
a percentage of the cost which is secured
on the property. The loans are interest free
and repayable only on the sale of the
property. On a sale, the fixed percentage
of the proceeds is repaid. The loans are
financed by an equal amount of SHG.

Grants received from non-Government
sources are recognised under the
performance model. If there are no
specific performance requirements the
grants are recognised when received or
receivable. Where grant is received with
specific performance requirements it is
recognised as a liability until the
conditions are met and then it is
recognised as turnover.

On redemption:
•

SHG is recycled.

•

SHG is written off, if a loss occurs.

•

The Group keeps any surplus.

Holiday pay accrual

Homebuy loans are treated as
concessionary loans and are initially
recognised at the amount paid to the
purchaser and reviewed annually for
impairment. The associated Homebuy
grant from the HCA is recognised as
deferred income until the loan is redeemed.

A liability is recognised to the extent of any
unused holiday pay entitlement which has
accrued at the date of the Statement of
Financial Position and carried forward to
future periods. This is measured at the
undiscounted salary cost of the future
holiday entitlement so accrued at that date.

Stock and properties for sale

Loan interest costs

Properties developed for outright sale
are included in current assets, at the lower
of cost or estimated selling price less costs
to complete and sell. Properties held for
sale are assessed for impairment at each
reporting date. If there is evidence of
impairment, the impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income.

Loan interest costs are calculated using
the effective interest method of the
difference between the loan amount at
initial recognition and the amount at
maturity of the related loan.

Short-term debtors and creditors
Debtors and creditors with no stated
interest rate and receivable or payable
within one year are recorded at transaction
price. Any losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in other operating

Loan issue costs, premium
and discounts
Loan finance costs are amortised over the
life of the related loan. Loans are stated in
the Statement of Financial Position at the
amount of the net proceeds after issue and
included in creditors greater than one year.
Where loans are redeemed during the year,
any redemption penalty and any
connected loan finance issue costs are
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recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the year
in which the redemption took place.

Fair value is determined as the amount for
which an asset could be exchanged, or a
liability settled, between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s length
Premiums or discounts arising on financial
transaction. To calculate fair value,
instruments are similarly included in creditors the Group uses:
greater than one year and subsequently
• Where they exist, quoted market
amortised over the life of the instrument.
prices in an active market to measure
the financial instrument.
Financial instruments
• If a market for a financial instrument
is not active, the Group will value it
The Group has chosen to apply the
using available sources including
recognition and measurement provisions
recent arm’s length market
of IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
transactions, reference to current fair
Recognition and Measurement (as
value of another similar instrument,
adopted for use in the European Union),
discounted cashflow analysis, and
the disclosure requirements of Sections
option pricing models. The valuation
11 and 12 and the presentation
incorporates these factors providing
requirements, as appropriate, of 11.38A
market participants would consider
or 12.25B as permitted by paragraphs
using in setting a price and they are
11.2(b) and 12.2(b) of FRS 102 in relation
consistent with accepted economic
to recognising, derecognising, measuring
methodologies for pricing financial
and disclosing financial instruments.
instruments.
Where the Group has entered into a
hedging relationship as described in IAS 39
in the period between the date of transition
and the reporting date for the first financial
statements that comply with FRS 102, it
has elected to apply hedge accounting
from the date all qualifying conditions for
hedge accounting in IAS 39 are met.

Amortised cost is calculated using the
effective interest method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or liability.

Hedging
Interest rate swaps relate to fixing variable
rate interest and are therefore designated
as cashflow hedges. A hedging instrument
is classified as an instrument whose fair
value or cashflows are expected to offset
changes in the fair value or cashflows of
Subsequently, financial assets and liabilities
a designated hedged item.
(including derivatives) are measured at fair
value, with the following exceptions:
They are measured at fair value at each
reporting date.
• Loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments, and non-derivative
Gains and losses on cashflow hedges
financial liabilities which are measured
which are highly effective are recognised
at amortised cost using the effective
in Other Comprehensive Income. Any
interest method.
ineffective portion of a gain or loss on
cashflow hedges is recognised in the
• Financial assets and liabilities that
are designated as a hedged item or
Statement of Comprehensive Income
hedging instrument are subject to
crediting/debiting the surplus for the year.
measurement under the hedge
accounting requirements of the IAS 39. In order to apply hedge accounting, an
economic relationship must exist between
the hedged item and the hedging
instrument.
Measurement
Initially, financial assets and liabilities are
measured at fair value (including transaction
costs, for assets and liabilities not measured
at fair value through profit or loss).
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•

80% to 125% window) shall be
recognised in profit or loss and
disclosed separately in interest payable
and similar charges. Ineffectiveness in
this context represents overeffectiveness when the cumulative
change in the fair value of the hedging
instrument is higher than the
cumulative change in the hedged item.

The Group must formally designate
and document the hedging
relationship at inception so that the
risk being hedged, the hedged item
and the hedging instrument are clearly
identified, and the risk management
objective for undertaking the hedge.

•

It is also required to determine and
document the causes of hedge
ineffectiveness.

•

The hedge is expected to be highly
effective in achieving offsetting
changes in fair value or cash flows
attributable to the hedged risk,
consistently with the originally
documented risk management
strategy for that particular hedging
relationship, and effectiveness can
be reliably measured.

The hedge is assessed on an ongoing
basis and determined actually to have
been highly effective throughout the
financial reporting periods for which the
hedge was designated. Under IAS 39 for
financial instruments: recognition and
measurement, it is necessary to comply
with the criteria of 80% to 125% for
hedge effectiveness. In a cashflow hedge,
if the hedged future cashflows are no
longer expected to occur, the amount that
has been accumulated in the cashflow
hedge reserve is reclassified from the
cashflow hedge reserve to profit or loss
immediately.
Where the Group hedges its exposure
to variability in cashflows that (i) is
attributable to a particular risk associated
with a recognised asset or liability (such
as all or some future interest payments on
variable rate debt) or a highly probable
forecast transaction and (ii) could affect
profit or loss, the hedging relationship is
designated as a cashflow hedge.
A cashflow hedge is accounted for
as follows:
•

The portion of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument that is determined
to be an effective hedge shall be
recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income and accumulated in the
cashflow hedge reserve; and

•

The ineffective portion of the gain
or loss on the hedging instrument
(including ineffectiveness within the

If the Group closes out early a cashflow
hedge that has a designated hedging
relationship, the cumulative gains and
losses recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income are frozen and reclassified from
the cashflow hedge reserve to revenue
reserve using the effective interest method.
Accounting for financial instruments
Some contracts, that themselves are not
financial instruments, may nonetheless
have financial instruments embedded in
them. An embedded derivative is a feature
within a contract, such that the cash flows
associated with that feature behave in a
similar fashion to a stand-alone derivative.
The Group will separate an embedded
derivative from its host contract when:
•

The economic risks and characteristics
of the embedded derivative are not
closely related to those of the host
contract;

•

A separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative
would meet the definition of a
derivative; and

•

The entire instrument is not measured
at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the Profit and Loss
Statement.

Where an embedded derivative is closely
related to the host contract, the entire
contract is accounted for at amortised cost
using the effective rate method.
Financial assets and liabilities
The Group classifies its financial assets into
one of the following categories depending
on the purpose for which the asset was
acquired.
Fair value through profit and loss
Other than derivative financial instruments
which are not designated as hedging
instruments, the Group does not have
any assets held for trading nor does it
voluntarily classify any financial assets as
being at fair value through profit and loss.
Loans and receivables
These assets are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market.
They are initially recognised at fair value
plus directly attributable transaction costs
at acquisition/issue, and are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.
Provisions are recognised when there is
objective evidence (such as significant
financial difficulties for the counterparty,
default or significant delay in payment) that
the Group will be unable to collect all of
the amounts due. The amount of such a
provision is disclosed as the difference
between the net carrying amount and the
present value of the future expected cash
flows associated with the receivable item.

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets are assessed at each
If an embedded derivative is separated, the reporting date to determine whether there
host contract is accounted for at amortised is any objective evidence that a financial
cost using the effective rate method and the asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. If there is objective evidence
fair value of the embedded derivative is
recognised in profit and loss and disclosed of impairment, an impairment loss is
recognised in the Statement of
separately in interest payable and similar
charges. If the Group is unable to measure Comprehensive Income immediately.
the embedded derivative separately, the
entire combined contract will be designated
at fair value through profit or loss.

Pension costs
The Group participates in both defined
benefit and defined contribution pension
schemes. Contributions to defined
contribution schemes are accounted
for as an expense as they fall due.
The Group is a member of SHPS, a
multi-employer defined benefit pension
scheme, where it is unable to identify its
share of the underlying assets and liabilities
on a consistent and reasonable basis,
and therefore, as required by FRS 102,
accounts for the scheme as if it were a
defined contribution scheme. As a result,
the amounts charged to operating
expenditure represent the contributions
payable to the scheme.
Contributions payable under an
agreement with SHPS to fund past deficits
are recognised as a liability in the Group’s
financial statements. These are the known
repayments, discounted to the net present
value at the year-end using a market rate
discount factor as disclosed in the notes.
The unwinding of the discount is
recognised as a finance cost in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income
in the period incurred.
For other defined benefit schemes, the net
liability (or asset) is calculated by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned to date, discounted to present
value, and deducting the fair value of the
scheme’s assets.
Changes in this net defined benefit liability
arising from employee service, introductions,
benefit changes, curtailments and
settlements during the period are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
so that they are charged/credited to the
surplus for the year. The net interest expense
(or income) on the net liability (or asset) for
the period is recognised as other finance
cost (or income).
Re-measurement of the net liability (or
asset) is recognised as actuarial gains/
losses in Other Comprehensive Income.
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3 Particulars of turnover, cost of sales, operating expenditure and operating surplus/(deficit)

3 Particulars of turnover, cost of sales, operating expenditure and operating surplus/(deficit)...continued

Group 2018

TGPL 2018

				
Turnover
Cost of
Operating
Operating
					
sales expenditure
surplus/
							
(deficit)
				£m
£m
£m
£m

Social housing lettings 			336.1

-

(225.7)

110.4

Other social housing activities:				

				
Turnover
Cost of
Operating
Operating
					
sales expenditure
surplus/
							
(deficit)
				£m
£m
£m
£m

Social housing lettings			325.9

-

(218.8)

107.1

Other social housing activities:				

First tranche property sales			

3.3

(2.8)

-

0.5

First tranche property sales			

3.3

(2.8)

-

0.5

Charges for support services			

0.6

-

(0.1)

0.5

Charges for support services			

0.5

-

-

0.5

Development costs not capitalised			

-

-

(0.9)

(0.9)

Development costs not capitalised			

-

-

(0.9)

(0.9)

Care and support services			

Other			 5.8

-

(8.4)

(2.6)

Total other social housing activities			
9.6

(2.8)

(9.3)

(2.5)

-

0.3

6.6

-

(9.5)

(2.9)

Other			 3.4

-

(5.8)

(2.4)

Total other social housing activities			
13.9

(2.8)

(16.3)

(5.2)

Non-social housing activities:				
Market sales			

Non-social housing activities:				
Market sales			0.6

(0.3)

19.0

(13.3)

(1.2)

4.5

Gift Aid			1.0

-

-

1.0

Other			 5.0

(3.0)

(4.6)

(2.6)

Other			1.2

(0.9)

-

0.3

Total			374.0

(19.1)

(247.8)

107.1

Total			338.3

(4.0)

(228.1)

106.2

Group 2017

TGPL 2017

				
Turnover
Cost of
Operating
Operating
					
sales expenditure
surplus/
							
(deficit)
				£m
£m
£m
£m

Social housing lettings 			314.8

-

(198.8)

116.0

-

2.0

Other social housing activities:				
First tranche property sales			

8.4

(6.4)

				
Turnover
Cost of
Operating
Operating
					
sales expenditure
surplus/
							
(deficit)
				£m
£m
£m
£m

Social housing lettings			303.5

-

(192.0)

111.5

-

2.0

Other social housing activities:				
First tranche property sales			

8.4

(6.4)

Charges for support services			

0.6

-

(0.2)

0.4

Charges for support services			

0.5

-

-

0.5

Development costs not capitalised			

-

-

(0.9)

(0.9)

Development costs not capitalised			

-

-

(0.9)

(0.9)

Care and support services			

7.8

-

(10.1)

(2.3)

Other			

8.9

-

(13.2)

(4.3)

Other			

6.4

-

(10.5)

(4.1)

Total other social housing activities			
17.8

(6.4)

(14.1)

(2.7)

Total other social housing activities			
23.2

(6.4)

(21.7)

(4.9)

Non-social housing activities:				

Non-social housing activities:				
13.8

(8.7)

-

5.1

Market sales			87.5

(63.8)

(1.0)

22.7

Gift Aid			19.0

-

-

19.0

Other			 4.6

(3.7)

(4.4)

(3.5)

Other			 0.3

(1.1)

-

(0.8)

Total			430.1

(73.9)

(225.9)

130.3

Total			354.4

(16.2)

(206.1)

132.1
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4 Particulars of turnover and operating expenditure from social housing lettings

4 Particulars of turnover and operating expenditure from social housing lettings...continued

Group

TGPL

		
General Supported/
Care
Shared
Total
Total
		
needs
housing
homes ownership
2018
2017
			
for older				
			
people				
		
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m

Income from social housing lettings
Rent receivable net of identifiable service charges and voids
Service charges receivable
Net rents receivable
Amortisation of Government grants
Turnover from social housing lettings

		
General Supported/
Care
Shared
Total
Total
		
needs
housing
homes ownership
2018
2017
			
for older				
			
people				
		
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m

Income from social housing lettings
243.9

35.3

4.4

16.0

299.6

279.4

10.6

9.2

0.1

1.9

21.8

21.1

254.5

44.5

4.5

17.9

321.4

300.5

11.0

2.2

0.1

1.4

14.7

14.3

265.5

46.7

4.6

19.3

336.1

314.8

Expenditure on social housing letting activities						

Rent receivable net of identifiable service charges and voids
Service charges receivable
Net rent receivable
Amortisation of Government grants
Turnover from social housing lettings

242.5

31.0

2.0

16.0

291.5

270.0

10.5

7.8

-

1.9

20.2

19.6

253.0

38.8

2.0

17.9

311.7

289.6

10.9

1.9

-

1.4

14.2

13.9

263.9

40.7

2.0

19.3

325.9

303.5

Expenditure on social housing letting activities						

Services

(15.0)

(4.8)

(3.5)

(0.7)

(24.0)

(24.4)

Services

(14.8)

(2.7)

-

(0.7)

(18.2)

(17.5)

Management

(70.7)

(14.0)

(2.0)

(3.5)

(90.2)

(76.3)

Management

(74.4)

(13.9)

(1.9)

(3.5)

(93.7)

(78.9)

Planned repairs

(16.2)

(3.2)

-

(0.7)

(20.1)

(13.2)

Planned repairs

(16.2)

(2.9)

-

(0.7)

(19.8)

(13.0)

Routine repairs and maintenance

(25.5)

(5.5)

(0.1)

(1.1)

(32.2)

(29.9)

Routine repairs and maintenance

(25.4)

(4.6)

-

(1.1)

(31.1)

(28.9)

(6.3)

(1.2)

-

(0.3)

(7.8)

(11.1)

Major repairs expenditure

(6.3)

(1.1)

-

(0.3)

(7.7)

(11.0)

Major repairs expenditure
Rent losses from bad debts

(1.4)

(0.3)

-

(0.1)

(1.8)

(2.4)

(38.1)

(7.8)

(0.1)

(5.0)

(51.0)

(43.5)

2.7

-

(1.2)

0.1

1.6

2.0

(170.5)

(36.8)

(6.9)

(11.3)

(225.5)

(198.8)

Operating surplus/(deficit) on social housing lettings

95.0

9.9

(2.3)

8.0

110.6

116.0

Rent losses from voids (included in rent receivable above)

1.6

0.5

0.4

0.2

2.7

2.8

Depreciation of housing properties
Impairment of housing properties
Operating expenditure on social housing letting activities
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Rent losses from bad debts
Depreciation of housing properties
Impairment of housing properties
Operating expenditure on social housing letting activities
Operating surplus on social housing lettings
Rent losses from voids (included in rent receivable above)

(1.3)

(0.2)

-

(0.1)

(1.6)

(2.2)

(37.7)

(6.8)

-

(5.0)

(49.5)

(42.2)

2.7

-

-

0.1

2.8

1.7

(173.4)

(32.2)

(1.9)

(11.3)

(218.8)

(192.0)

90.5

8.5

0.1

8.0

107.1

111.5

1.6

0.5

-

0.2

2.3

2.2
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4 Particulars of turnover and operating expenditure from social housing lettings...continued

6 Key management personnel and employee information

The number of units of accommodation owned and/or managed at the end of the year were:

The Directors are defined as the members of the Board and the Executive Team. Board members received payments of £108,222 in their capacity as
members of The Guinness Partnership Limited Board (2017: £108,067). No members have been paid in their capacity as members of other Boards of
the Group (2017: nil).

Group
				Total
				2018
				Number

TGPL

Total
2017
Number

Total
2018
Number

Total
2017
Number

Housing accommodation:
General needs housing at social rent			

40,713

41,007

40,713

41,007

General needs housing at affordable rent			

6,346

6,010

6,346

6,010

Supported housing and housing for older people			

8,589

8,547

8,563

8,517

Other housing properties:				
Low Cost Home Ownership			6,339

6,363

6,339

6,363

Care homes			160

220

67

57

Social leasehold			3,500

3,600

3,500

3,600

Other			
1,132

937

307

326

			
66,779

66,684

65,835

65,880

Being:				
Owned and managed			64,295

64,137

62,700

62,464

1,241

1,321

1,227

1,307

Managed only			1,243

1,226

1,908

2,109

			66,779

66,684

65,835

65,880

Owned but managed by others			

5 Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
		
		
		
		

Right to
Second &
Buy/ subsequent
Acquire staircasing
£m
£m

Disposal of
surplus
properties
£m

Other
fixed
assets
£m

Group
Total
2018
£m

Group
Total
2017
£m

8.6

1.5

22.5

25.8

Group
Proceeds

3.2

9.2

Disposals at cost

(1.7)

(4.8)

(7.3)

(2.1)

(15.9)

(15.9)

Cost of sales

(0.4)

(0.4)

(5.1)

-

(5.9)

(1.1)

0.1

0.4

2.3

1.0

3.8

0.9

-

-

1.3

-

1.3

-

1.2

4.4

(0.2)

0.4

5.8

9.7

Right to
Second & Disposal of
Buy/ subsequent
surplus
Acquire staircasing properties
£m
£m
£m

Other
fixed
assets
£m

Group
Total
2018
£m

Group
Total
2017
£m

5.4

1.5

19.2

24.8

Depreciation on disposals
Impairment on disposals
Surplus / (deficit) on disposal of tangible fixed assets
		
		
		
		

There was an average of 9 members of the Executive Team during the year (2017: 8).
						
2018
Group and TGPL					
£’000

2017
£’000

Aggregate emoluments payable to the Executive Team, excluding non-executive directors:
Emoluments					
1,452

1,318

Benefits in kind					
6

4

Pension contributions					
67

59

					
1,525

1,381

Aggregate emoluments payable to Board and Executive Team, including non-executive directors:		
Emoluments					
1,579

1,426

Benefits in kind					
6

4

Pension contributions 					
67

59

					
1,652

1,489

Expenses reimbursed to directors not chargeable to United Kingdom Income Tax					

7

21

Highest paid director – Group Chief Executive					

252

252

Benefits in kind					
1

1

Pension equivalents					
11

11

					
264

264

In the year to 31 March 2018, the Group Chief Executive was a member of the SHPS 1/60th CARE pension scheme on the same basis as all other
employees that are members of that scheme. Neither TGPL nor any other member of the Group contributes to any private pension of the Group Chief
Executive. The Group Chief Executive ceased to contribute to the SHPS 1/60th CARE pension scheme from April 2018.

TGPL
Proceeds

3.2

9.1

Disposals at cost

(1.7)

(4.7)

(2.0)

(1.7)

(10.1)

(14.8)

Cost of sales

(0.4)

(0.5)

(4.0)

-

(4.9)

(1.0)

Depreciation on disposals

0.1

0.4

0.8

0.7

2.0

0.4

Surplus on disposal of tangible fixed assets

1.2

4.3

0.2

0.5

6.2

9.4
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6 Key management personnel and employee information...continued

6 Key management personnel and employee information...continued

				
Group
				2018
				Number

TGPL
2018
Number

Group
2017
Number

TGPL
2017
Number

The average number of persons employed expressed in full time equivalents,
whose remuneration payable including redundancy fell within the following bands:				

				
Group
				2018
				£m

TGPL
2018
£m

Group
2017
£m

TGPL
2017
£m

Staff costs – excluding non-executive directors
Wages and salaries			78.7

48.0

75.7

45.9

Less than £60,000			2,443

1,326

2,632

1,417

Redundancy costs			1.8

1.5

1.2

1.2

£60,001 to £70,000			49

39

35

32

Social security costs			7.2

4.7

6.6

4.3

£70,001 to £80,000			17

17

24

24

Pension costs (employer’s contributions)			8.3

7.9

8.1

7.5

£80,001 to £90,000			6

6

3

3

£90,001 to £100,000			9

6

7

5

			96.0

62.1

91.6

58.9

£100,001 to £110,000			2

2

4

4

Staff costs – non-executive directors						

£110,001 to £120,000			2

2

3

2

Wages and salaries			0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

£120,001 to £130,000			2

2

2

2

Pension costs (employer’s contributions)			-

-

-

-

£130,001 to £140,000			1

1

2

1

£140,001 to £150,000			2

1

3

3

			0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

£150,001 to £160,000			3

3

2

2

Total staff costs						

£170,001 to £180,000			

1

-

-

Wages and salaries			78.9

48.1

75.8

46.0

1.5

1.2

1.2

1
1

1

-

-

Redundancy costs			1.8

£200,001 to £210,000			-

-

-

-

Social security costs			7.2

4.7

6.6

4.3

7.9

8.1

7.5

62.2

91.7

59.0

TGPL
2018
£m

Group
2017
£m

TGPL
2017
£m

£190,001 to £200,000			

£220,001 to £230,000			-

-

-

-

Pension costs (employer’s contributions)			8.3

£250,001 to £260,000			1

1

1

1

			96.2

Total employees			2,539

1,408

2,718

1,496

Full time equivalents have been calculated on the basis that 35 working hours per week is equal to one full time equivalent. The remuneration used to
allocate employees into the bands above includes redundancy payments to a number of staff as a result of the changes to our structure during the year.
The number of employees whose actual remuneration falls into a bracket above £100,000 was 12 (2017:14).

7 Interest payable and financing costs
				
Group
				2018
				£m

On loans repayable on maturity within five years*			

1.5

1.5

1.8

1.9

On loans wholly or partly repayable in more than five years*			

62.7

62.6

58.1

57.8

Amortisation of loan issue costs			

0.2

0.2

(0.2)

(0.2)

Pension interest costs charged in respect of FRS 102 (Note 27 )			

0.7

0.5

1.0

0.9

			65.1

64.8

60.7

60.4

Interest capitalised in respect of housing properties			

(3.9)

(3.8)

(2.2)

(2.2)

Total interest payable and similar charges			

61.2

61.0

58.5

58.2

* Held at amortised cost
The rate of interest in respect of capitalised interest for the Group and for TGPL is based on the weighted interest cost calculated on a monthly basis.
The average rate used for the year is 5.4% (2017: 5.4%).
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8 Surplus before taxation

10 Tangible fixed assets – Housing Properties (Group)

				
Group
				2018
				£m

TGPL
2018
£m

Group
2017
£m

TGPL
2017
£m

Surplus for the year is stated after charging/(crediting):
Depreciation of housing properties			54.2

52.6

44.2

42.7

Group
				 Completed
				
rented
				£m

Shared
Under
ownership construction
£m
£m

Total
£m

Cost
At 1 April 2017			

3,315.5

(13.9)

Additions – components capitalised			

29.0

-

-

29.0

(1.7)

Additions – properties under construction			

-

-

62.0

62.0

Depreciation of other fixed assets			

5.8

5.4

4.7

4.4

Amortisation of Government grants – deferred income			

(14.7)

(14.2)

(14.3)

Impairment of housing properties and other fixed assets			

(2.9)

(2.8)

(2.0)

285.9

51.9

3,653.3

Auditor’s remuneration in their capacity as auditors, excluding VAT, including expenses		

0.2

0.1

0.4

0.3

Schemes completed			

27.9

2.2

(30.1)

-

Auditor’s remuneration in respect of other services, excluding VAT, including expenses		

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

Disposals at cost			

(32.4)

(4.8)

-

(37.2)

Surplus on disposal of tangible fixed assets			

(5.8)

(6.2)

(9.7)

(9.4)

At 31 March 2018			

3,340.0

283.3

83.8

3,707.1

Rent payable under operating leases			

3.0

1.7

1.6

1.6
-

(590.2)

Depreciation and leasehold amortisation				
At 1 April 2017			

(576.7)

(13.5)

9 Taxation on surplus for year

Depreciation charge for year			

(52.4)

(1.8)

-

(54.2)

The Guinness Partnership Limited and Guinness Care and Support Limited have charitable status and are not subject to corporation tax on surpluses
derived from their charitable activities.

Disposals			13.4

0.4

-

13.8

(14.9)

-

(630.6)

(17.3)

				
Group
				2018
				£m

TGPL
2018
£m

Group
2017
£m

At 31 March 2018			

TGPL
2017
£m

(615.7)

Impairment				
At 1 April 2017			

(14.0)

(3.3)

-

Current tax:

Released in the year 			

4.1

0.1

-

4.2

Charged in the year			

(1.3)

-

-

(1.3)

At 31 March 2018			

(11.2)

(3.2)

-

(14.4)

UK corporation tax on surplus for the year			

0.6

-

0.8

0.8

Adjustments in respect of previous years			

(0.2)

(0.1)

-

-

Current tax charge/(credit) on surplus on ordinary activities			

0.4

(0.1)

0.8

0.8

Deferred tax:				

Net book value				
At 31 March 2018			

2,713.1

265.2

83.8

3,062.1

At 31 March 2017			

2,724.8

269.1

51.9

3,045.8

						
2018
						
£m

2017
£m

Recognition of timing differences			-

-

-

-

Adjustments in respect of previous years			

-

-

-

-

Deferred tax charge			-

-

-

-

0.4

(0.1)

0.8

0.8

Surplus before taxation			54.2

54.0

95.2

96.7

Capitalised costs in respect of existing properties					

29.0

20.4

Costs charged to Statement of Comprehensive Income					

27.9

24.4

Total costs in year incurred on existing properties					
56.9

44.8

Total tax charge/(credit) on surplus on ordinary activities			

Expenditure on completed housing properties comprises the following:

Factors affecting tax charge for the year:
Adjustment for surpluses not subject to tax 			

(51.0)

(54.0)

(91.2)

(92.7)

Surplus/(loss) on ordinary activities before tax in taxable entities			

3.1

-

4.0

4.0

Surplus/ (loss) on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard
rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2017: 20%)			

0.6

-

0.8

0.8

Short leasehold office premises at net book value					

0.2

0.2

Adjustments in respect of previous years			

(0.2)

(0.1)

-

-

Capitalised development administration costs included in additions in the year					

3.5

3.2

Current tax charge/(credit) for the year			

0.4

(0.1)

0.8

0.8
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11 Tangible fixed assets – Housing Properties (TGPL)

12 Other tangible fixed assets
TGPL

				 Completed
				
rented
				£m

Group

Shared
Under
ownership construction
£m
£m

Total
£m

Cost
At 1 April 2017			

3,200.7

285.6

52.5

3,538.8

Additions – components capitalised			

27.3

-

-

27.3

Additions – properties under construction			

-

-

62.9

62.9

Schemes completed			

27.9

2.2

(30.1)

-

Disposals			(26.9)

(4.7)

-

(31.6)

283.1

85.3

3,597.4

At 31 March 2018			

3,229.0

Depreciation and leasehold amortisation				
At 1 April 2017			

(560.2)

(13.5)

-

(573.7)

Depreciation charge for year			

(50.8)

(1.8)

-

(52.6)

Disposals			11.9

0.4

-

12.3

(14.9)

-

(614.0)

At 31 March 2018			

(599.1)

Impairment				
At 1 April 2017			

(11.4)

(3.3)

-

(14.7)

Released in the year			

2.7

0.1

-

2.8

At 31 March 2018			

(8.7)

(3.2)

-

(11.9)

Net book value				
At 31 March 2018			

2,621.2

265.0

85.3

2,971.5

At 31 March 2017			

2,629.1

268.8

52.5

2,950.4

					
Freehold &
					
leasehold
					
offices
					£m

2017
£m

Expenditure on completed housing properties comprises the following:

Total

38.7

74.8

£m

Cost
At 1 April 2017				

36.1

Additions				1.0

5.7

6.7

Disposals at cost				(1.6)

(0.5)

(2.1)

At 31 March 2018				

43.9

79.4

35.5

Depreciation, impairment and leasehold amortisation				
At 1 April 2017				

(10.9)

(24.4)

(35.3)

Depreciation charge for year				

(1.4)

(4.4)

(5.8)

Disposals				0.7

0.3

1.0

(28.5)

(40.1)

At 31 March 2018				

(11.6)

Net book value				
At 31 March 2018				

23.9

15.4

39.3

At 31 March 2017				

25.2

14.3

39.5

TGPL
					
Freehold &
					
leasehold
					
offices
					£m

Plant,
vehicles &
equipment
£m

Total

70.2

£m

Cost
At 1 April 2017				

						
2018
						
£m

Plant,
vehicles &
equipment
£m

33.9

36.3

Additions				1.0

5.4

6.4

Disposals at cost				(1.6)

(0.1)

(1.7)

At 31 March 2018				

41.6

74.9

33.3

Capitalised costs in respect of existing properties					

27.3

18.7

Costs charged to Statement of Comprehensive Income					

27.5

24.0

At 1 April 2017				

(10.3)

(22.7)

(33.0)

42.7

Depreciation charge for year				

(1.5)

(3.9)

(5.4)

Disposals				0.6

0.1

0.7

(26.5)

(37.7)

Total costs in year incurred on existing properties					
54.8
The following amounts have been included within the fixed asset table above:		

Depreciation, impairment and leasehold amortisation				

Short leasehold office premises at net book value					

0.2

0.2

At 31 March 2018				

Capitalised development administration costs included in additions in the year					

3.5

3.2

Net book value				

TGPL's completed housing properties have been insured at a reinstatement value of £5,899m which, together with a 25% notional assumed land value,
would amount to £7,373m (2017: £7,300m) compared with a cost of £3,510m (2017: £3,486m).
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(11.2)

At 31 March 2018				

22.1

15.1

37.2

At 31 March 2017				

23.6

13.6

37.2
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13 Intangible assets

16 Investment in subsidiaries

						
Goodwill
						
£m

Group
Cost
At 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018						

2.4

Amortisation				
At 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018						

(2.4)

Net book value				
At 31 March 2018						-

TGPL
						
2018
						
£m

2017
£m

City Response Limited					
2.0

2.0

Guinness Developments Limited					
5.0

5.0

Guinness Housing Association Limited					

0.1

0.1

Guinness Homes Limited					
12.0

12.0

Hallco 1397 Limited					
27.0

27.0

					
46.1

46.1

At 31 March 2017						-

17 Stock
14 Investment properties
				
Group
				2018
				£m

At 1 April			2.1

TGPL
2018
£m

Group
2017
£m

TGPL
2017
£m

2.1

2.1

2.1

(1.6)

(1.6)

-

-

Revaluation gains			0.2

0.2

-

-

At 31 March 			0.7

0.7

2.1

2.1

Transfer to general needs 			

				
Group
				2018
				£m

0.7

-

10.4

0.3

4.9

4.9

0.5

0.6

Properties under development for outright sale			

15.8

-

9.7

-

Properties under development for shared ownership			

11.3

11.3

7.1

7.1

Stocks of maintenance materials			1.5

0.7

0.8

0.1

Total stock			34.2

16.9

28.5

8.1

TGPL
2018
£m

Group
2017
£m

TGPL
2017
£m

15 Fixed asset investments

				
Group
				2018
				£m
Group
2017
£m

TGPL
2017
£m

Debt service reserve investments			56.1

56.1

44.9

44.9

Homebuy and equity loans			10.4

10.4

11.2

11.1

Other investments			4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

			70.5

70.5

60.1

60.0
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TGPL
2017
£m

Properties completed for outright sale			

18 Debtors

TGPL
2018
£m

Group
2017
£m

Properties completed for shared ownership			

Investment properties were valued at 31 March 2017 by Jones Lang LaSalle, professionally qualified valuers, in accordance with the Royal Institute
of Chartered Surveyors valuation standards. During the year, 16 of the 20 properties were converted to general needs tenancies. The remaining
four properties were the subject of a desktop valuation as at 31 March 2018.

				
Group
				2018
				£m

TGPL
2018
£m

Amounts falling due within one year:
Rents and service charges receivable			

18.4

18.3

23.4

22.3

Less: provision for bad and doubtful debts			

(10.2)

(9.9)

(13.0)

(12.7)

			8.2

8.4

10.4

9.6

Social housing grant receivable			0.7

0.7

0.7

0.7

Amounts due from group companies			

-

21.3

-

44.9

Other debtors and prepayments			

11.4

8.4

20.3

7.9

			20.3

38.8

31.4

63.1
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19 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

20 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

				
Group
				2018
				£m

Bank overdraft			

TGPL
2017
£m

Group
2017
£m

TGPL
2017
£m

				
Group
				2018
				£m

TGPL
2018
£m

Group
2017
£m

TGPL
2017
£m

-

-

2.2

2.1

14.8

14.2

16.5

15.9

Trade creditors			13.7

4.2

15.4

4.2

Within one to two years			

21.0

20.5

29.2

28.8

Taxation and social security			2.3

1.6

2.0

1.3

Within two to five years			

61.3

60.6

68.1

67.0

Corporation tax			0.5

-

0.8

0.8

In five years or more			

636.5

632.6

674.1

670.3

Amounts due to Group companies			

-

-

-

10.8

Social Housing Grant repayable			

-

-

0.3

0.3

Other creditors			33.0

31.3

24.4

24.5

Accruals and deferred income			33.8

28.4

43.1

31.5

Government grants - deferred income 			

14.5

14.1

14.7

14.2

Disposal Proceeds Fund			0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

Recycled Capital Grant Fund			7.4

6.7

7.4

6.7

				120.3

100.8

127.1

112.6

Loans repayable within one year			

As at 31 March 2018, the Group and TGPL held £18.7m (2017: £16.6m) relating to tenants’ and leaseholders’ sinking funds included within other
creditors. These funds are held as cash.

Loans
Repayable by annual instalments:				

Loan fair value adjustment			56.7

56.7

57.9

57.9

Fair value adjustment for MTM			

42.9

42.9

49.3

49.3

			818.4

813.3

878.6

873.3

Repayable on maturity:				
Within two to five years			

-

-

-

-

In five years or more			

415.0

415.0

366.9

366.8

			1,233.4

1,228.3

1,245.5

1,240.1

Other loans			0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

Bond issue premium			8.7

8.7

9.6

9.5

Bond issue discount			(0.5)

(0.5)

(0.5)

(0.5)

Loan issue costs			(7.5)

(7.5)

(8.5)

(8.5)

			1,234.4

1,229.3

1,246.4

1,240.9

Government grants - deferred income 			

1,143.3

1,160.4

1,130.0

1,176.4

Disposal Proceeds Fund			1.2

1.2

1.1

1.1

Recycled Capital Grant Fund			15.5

12.3

11.3

11.2

			2,411.5

2,372.8

2,435.2

2,396.5

Loan portfolio: During the year, the Group reduced its borrowing by £13.9m and TGPL reduced its borrowing by £13.4m (2017: Group: £161.9m
increase, TGPL: £162.1m increase). At 31 March 2018, total borrowing for the Group was £1,248.0m and for TGPL was £1,242.6m (2017: Group:
£1,261.9m, TGPL: £1,256.0m). The loans repayable by instalments after five years are due for repayment within 29 years. The loans repayable on
maturity after five years are due for repayment within 31 years. Loans are secured by specific charges on the Group's housing properties.
Borrowings include:

•

The Guinness Trust First Mortgage Debenture Stock of £100m, issued in two tranches of £60m in November 1997 and £40m in February 2001.
The term of the Bond is 40 years from issue, interest is payable at a fixed coupon of 7.5% and capital repayments commenced in November 2008.
TGPL maintains a Debt Service Reserve in a charged account equivalent to one year’s interest and capital payments.

•

The Harbour (Hermitage Housing Association) First Mortgage Debenture Stock of £45m raised in August 2003. The term of the Bond is 30 years
from issue, interest is payable at a fixed coupon of 5.28% and the capital is repayable in full at the end of the term. The Partnership maintains a
Debt Service Reserve in a charged account equivalent to fifteen months’ interest payments.

•

The Guinness Northern Counties Limited First Mortgage Debenture Stock of £110m raised in 1995. The term of the Bond is 30 years from issue
with terms requiring payments into a sinking fund. These payments commenced in January 2016. Interest is payable at a fixed coupon of 9.125%.

•

The Guinness Partnership Limited £250m Secured Bonds issued in 2014, of which £100m retained. The term of the Bonds is 30 years from issue,
interest is payable at a fixed coupon of 4.00%.

•

Amounts relating to the fair value adjustment on loans on acquisition and Mark-to-Market fair value adjustments are presented separately under the category
of loans repayable in annual instalments. These were previously included in the total for Loans Repayable by Annual Instalment in five years or more.

Balances on Debt Service Reserves are shown within fixed asset investments (See Note 15).
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20 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year...continued

20 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year...continued

The maturity profile of the Group’s loan facilities, drawn and undrawn, over the period (excluding other loans and fair value adjustments on acquisition
of debt) as at 31 March 2018 is as follows:

Hedging instruments: The Group and TGPL utilise a range of hedging instruments embedded and transacted under ISDA Agreements and including
term fixes and cancellable options. Cancellable options as at 31 March 2018 totalled £81.0m (2017: £81.1m) covering terms of between five and
twenty one years and option periods from three months to five years.

				
Financial
				
liabilities
				£m

Undrawn
facilities
£m

Total
facilities
£m

56.0

70.8

At 31 March 2018 transactions under ISDA Agreements totalled £110.2m (2017: £111.0m). The Mark-to-Market exposure on these was adverse to
the value by £42.9m (2017: £49.3m adverse). Positions in excess of unsecured threshold levels are secured by property.

As at 31 March 2018
Less than one year				

14.8

Within one to two years				

21.0

-

21.0

Within two to five years				

61.3

65.0

126.3

In five years or more				

1,049.1

297.0

1,346.1

				1,146.2

418.0

1,564.2

As at 31 March 2017				
Less than one year				

19.9

1.4

21.3

Within one to two years				

29.2

100.0

129.2

Within two to five years				

68.1

65.0

133.1

In five years or more				

1,040.1

300.6

1,340.7

				1,157.3

467.0

1,624.3

Fair value: The Guinness Trust £100m debenture stock has a market value at 31 March 2018 of £127.9m (2017: £138.0m). The Harbour (Hermitage)
£45m debenture stock has a market value at 31 March 2018 of £58.1m (2017: £60.2m). The Northern Counties £110m debenture has a market value
at 31 March 2018 of £157.3m (2017: £168.2m). The Guinness Partnership Ltd £150m secured bond issued on 24 October 2014 has a market value
at 31 March 2018 of £180.8m (2017: £187.6m) excluding £100.0m of retained bonds.
The fair value of the liability in respect of fixed interest rate loans is equivalent to the sum of principal and net notional breakage costs that would be
payable by the Group if, theoretically, the fixed interest rate agreements were terminated or redeemed at the year-end. The fair value of the Group’s
liability in respect of fixed and callable fixed interest rate loans excluding The Guinness Trust Bond, Harbour Bond and Northern Counties Bond and
The Guinness Partnership Ltd Bond detailed above, as at 31 March 2018, is estimated at £999.2m (2017: £1044.7m).

At 31 March 2018 77.7% (2017: 80.0%) of the Group’s borrowing was at fixed rates of interest. TGPL’s borrowing at fixed rates of interest was 78.0%
(2017: 80.6%). The period for which interest rates are fixed is up to 31 years (TGPL: 31 years). The figures for financial liabilities above exclude a sale
and lease back agreement of £0.3m (2017: £0.3m).

Fixed rate maturities for the Group were as follows:
				 Fixed rate
					
maturities
					
£m

Average
interest
%

As at 31 March 2018
Less than one year					

4.4

7.2%

Within one to two years					

28.9

5.0%

Within two to five years					

40.8

6.4%

In five years or more					

816.0

6.1%

					
890.1

6.1%

As at 31 March 2017
Less than one year					

24.3

5.7%

Within one to two years					

19.7

6.0%

Within two to five years					

50.5

5.7%

In five years or more					

832.0

6.1%

					
926.5

6.1%

At 31 March 2018, 22.3% (TGPL: 22.0%) of borrowing was at variable rates of interest. The weighted average interest rate for all loans at
31 March 2018 including margin was 5.4% (TGPL: 5.4%).
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21 Financial assets and liabilities

22 Government grants – deferred income

The Group and TGPL hold a range of financial assets and liabilities where there is a contractual obligation to receive or deliver cash or cash equivalents.
A summary of these assets and liabilities is set out below:

The Group and TGPL have received Government grants in order to provide social housing. The majority of these grants are Social Housing Grant,
but the Group and TGPL have also received grants from Local Authorities and other Government bodies.

				
Group
				2018
				£m

TGPL
2018
£m

Group
2017
£m

TGPL
2017
£m

Homebuy and equity loans			10.4

10.4

11.2

11.2

			10.4

10.4

11.2

11.2

The grants have no explicit requirements to be repaid, but on disposal of properties to which they relate, there is an obligation to either recycle or
repay the grant received in relation to the property.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Group

Financial assets measured at amortised cost				

					
Completed
Properties
					
properties &
under
					
equity loans construction
					£m
£m

£m

Social Housing Grant

Debt service reserve investments			56.1

56.1

44.9

44.9

At 1 April 2017				

Rent and service charges receivable			

18.4

18.3

23.4

22.3

Grant receivable				

Other debtors			7.8

4.8

16.0

4.2

Cash and cash equivalents			78.9

37.9

73.9

32.0

			161.2

117.1

158.2

103.4

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss				
Standalone hedges			(42.9)

(42.9)

(49.3)

(49.3)

			(42.9)

(42.9)

(49.3)

(49.3)

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost				
Bank overdraft			

Total

-

-

(2.2)

(2.1)

Trade creditors			(46.7)

(31.8)

(57.0)

(34.2)

Other creditors			(33.0)

(31.4)

(24.3)

(27.0)

1,312.3

44.6

1,356.9

-

15.9

15.9

Grant transferred at completion				

32.8

(32.8)

-

Grant transferred on disposals				

(19.1)

0.4

(18.7)

Grant reclassified from other capital grant				

7.2

-

7.2

At 31 March 2018				

1,333.2

28.1

1,361.3

Other capital grants			
7.1

123.4

Grant receivable				

At 1 April 2017				

116.3
-

0.8

0.8

Grant reclassified to Social Housing Grant				

-

(7.2)

(7.2)

At 31 March 2018				

116.3

0.7

117.0

Amortisation			

Amounts owed to subsidiary entities			

-

-

-

(10.8)

At 1 April 2017				

(289.2)

-

(289.2)

Loans repayable within one year			

(14.8)

(14.2)

(16.5)

(15.9)

Released to income during the year 				

(14.7)

-

(14.7)

Loans repayable after one year			

(1,133.8)

(1,128.7)

(1,138.3)

(1,132.9)

Transferred on disposals 				

0.4

-

0.4

			(1,228.3)

(1,206.1)

(1,238.3)

(1,222.9)

At 31 March 2018				

(303.5)

-

(303.5)

Deferred income to be released in less than one year 				

14.5

-

14.5

Deferred income to be released in more than one year				

1,131.6

28.8

1,160.4

At 31 March 2018				

1,146.1

28.8

1,174.9

Deferred income to be released in less than one year				

14.7

-

14.7

Deferred income to be released in more than one year				

1,124.7

51.7

1,176.4

At 31 March 2017				

1,139.4

51.7

1,191.1

The Group's financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents, bank borrowings and items such as trade creditors and trade debtors which
arise directly from its operations. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to provide finance for the Group's operations.
The Group’s operations expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s Treasury Management
Policy is updated and submitted annually to the Group Board for approval. The Group Audit and Risk Committee and the Group Board review treasury
performance quarterly. A summary of these risks is shown within the Strategic Report and Report of the Board.

Net deferred income at 31 March 2018			

Net deferred income at 31 March 2017			
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22 Government grants – deferred income...continued

23 Recycled Capital Grant Fund and Disposal Proceeds Fund
TGPL

					
Completed
Properties
					
properties &
under
					
equity loans construction
					£m
£m

Total
£m

Social Housing Grant
At 1 April 2017				

1,263.3

Grant receivable				

44.6

1,307.9

-

15.8

15.8

Grant transferred at completion				

32.8

(32.8)

-

Grant transferred on disposals				

(16.8)

0.4

(16.4)

Grant reclassified from other capital grants				

7.2

-

At 31 March 2018				

1,286.5

116.3

				Group
				
HE
Recycled Capital Grant Fund			
£m

At 1 April 2017			

18.2

Group
GLA
£m

TGPL
HE
£m

TGPL
GLA
£m

0.5

17.4

0.5

Inputs to fund:				
Grants recycled during the year			

6.5

-

3.4

-

Interest added to the fund during the year			

0.1

-

0.1

-

Recycling of grant:				
New build			

(2.4)

-

(2.4)

-

7.2

At 31 March 2018			

22.4

0.5

18.5

0.5

28.0

1,314.5

Amounts 3 years or older where repayment may be required			

4.1

0.2

4.0

0.2

7.1

123.4
				Group
				
HE
Disposal Proceeds Fund			
£m

Group
GLA
£m

TGPL
HE
£m

TGPL
GLA
£m

0.2

1.2

0.2

Other capital grants			
At 1 April 2017				

Grant receivable				

-

0.7

0.7

Grant reclassified to Social Housing Grant				

-

(7.2)

(7.2)

At 31 March 2018				

116.3

0.6

116.9

At 1 April 2017				

(273.8)

-

(273.8)

Released to income during the year 				

(14.2)

-

(14.2)

Recycling of grant:				

Transferred on disposals 				

0.7

-

0.7

New build			-

At 31 March 2018				

(287.3)

-

(287.3)

Deferred income to be released in less than one year 				

14.1

-

14.1

Deferred income to be released in more than one year				

1,101.4

28.6

1,130.0

At 31 March 2018				

1,115.5

28.6

1,144.1

Deferred income to be released in less than one year				

14.2

-

14.2

Deferred income to be released in more than one year				

1,091.6

51.7

1,143.3

At 31 March 2017				

1,105.8

51.7

1,157.5

Amortisation			

Net deferred income at 31 March 2018			

At 1 April 2017			

1.2

Inputs to fund:				
Grants recycled during the year			

0.1

-

0.1

-

Interest added to the fund during the year			

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

At 31 March 2018			

1.3

0.2

1.3

0.2

Amounts 3 years or older where repayment may be required			

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.2

				
Group
				2018
Allotted, called up and fully paid			
£

TGPL
2018
£

Group
2017
£

TGPL
2017
£

At 1 April			6

6

5

5

Issued during the year			2

2

2

2

Cancelled during the year			

-

-

(1)

(1)

At 31 March			8

8

6

6

24 Share Capital

Net deferred income at 31 March 2017			

The share capital of 8 ordinary shares of £1 each represents the nominal value of the shares. These shares carry no dividend rights and are cancelled on
cessation of membership of the Group. Each member has the right to vote at members’ meetings.
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25 Pension provision

27 Pension obligations...continued

				
Group
				2018
				£m

LPFA

			

TGPL
2018
£m

Group
2017
£m

TGPL
2017
£m

5.1

5.1

5.6

5.6

Unfunded scheme			0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

Other

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

At 31 March			5.6

5.6

6.3

6.3

			

The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into force on 30 December 2005. This, together with
documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council, set out the framework for
funding defined benefit occupational pension schemes in the UK.
The scheme is classified as a 'last-man standing' arrangement. Therefore, TGPL is potentially liable for other participating employers' obligations if those
employers are unable to meet their share of the scheme deficit following withdrawal from the scheme. Participating employers are legally required to
meet their share of the scheme deficit on an annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the scheme.

Further details of the provisions for the LPFA and the closed unfunded scheme are set out in Note 27.

The Group currently operates a 1/120th defined benefit career average revalued earnings (CARE schemes) for new and existing employees and 1/60th
and 1/80th CARE schemes for some existing employees, but closed to new employees. For these schemes future employer contributions will be equal
to 18.1% of pensionable salaries.

26 Other provisions for liabilities

The contributions payable by the Group during the accounting period, which were assessed in accordance with the advice of a qualified actuary, were
equal to 10.5% (2017: 10.7%) of total pensionable salaries.

				
Group
				2018
				£m

Provision for future deficit payments - SHPS pension scheme			

40.6

Provision for future deficit payments - acquired - SHPS pension scheme			

TGPL
2018
£m

Group
2017
£m

TGPL
2017
£m

38.0

45.7

43.2

-

-

0.5

0.5

Other provisions			4.9

4.0

3.0

1.4

At 31 March			45.5

42.0

49.2

45.1

Other provisions:

A full actuarial valuation for the scheme was carried out with an effective date of 30 September 2014. This actuarial valuation was certified on 23
November 2015 and showed assets of £3,123m, liabilities of £4,446m and a deficit of £1,323m. To eliminate this funding shortfall, the trustees and
the participating employers have agreed that additional contributions will be paid by all employers, to the scheme. A provision is recognised for the
additional deficit contributions as set out below:

Present values of provision: reconciliation of opening and closing provisions
				
Group
				2018
				£m

TGPL
2018
£m

Group
2017
£m

TGPL
2017
£m

At 1 April			3.0

1.4

2.2

1.3

Provided during the year			2.8

2.7

1.9

0.9

Provision at start of period			

46.2

43.7

49.9

46.5

Obligation acquired on transfer of engagements			

-

-

0.5

0.5

Unwinding of the discount factor (interest expense)			

Released during the year			(0.9)

(0.1)

(1.1)

(0.8)

At 31 March			4.9

4.0

3.0

1.4

Further details of the provisions for the SHPS scheme are set out in Note 27.

0.7

0.5

1.0

0.9

Deficit contribution paid			(5.8)

(5.7)

(6.5)

(5.5)

Re-measurement – impact of any changes in assumptions			

(0.5)

(0.5)

1.3

1.3

Provision at end of period			

40.6

38.0

46.2

43.7

				
Group
				2018
				£m

TGPL
2018
£m

Group
2017
£m

TGPL
2017
£m

0.5

1.0

0.9

27 Pension obligations
The Group and TGPL contribute to a number of defined benefit pension schemes for staff, the assets of which are held in separate trustee administered
funds. The total contributions to these schemes by the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 amounted to £8.3m (2017: £8.1m).
A summary of the Group pension obligations from the Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS) and the liability from other defined benefit schemes is
included below:

Recognition in Statement of Comprehensive Income
The amounts recognised in relation to SHPS in the Statement of Comprehensive Income are as follows:

				
Group
				2018
				£m

TGPL
2018
£m

Group
2017
£m

TGPL
2017
£m

Interest expense			0.7
(0.5)

(0.5)

1.3

1.3

SHPS			40.6

38.0

46.2

43.7

			0.2

-

2.3

2.2

Defined benefit schemes			5.3

5.3

5.9

5.9

			45.9

43.3

52.1

49.6

Re-measurement - impact of any changes in assumptions			

Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS)
The Group participates in the SHPS scheme, a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to some 500 non-associated employers. The scheme is
a defined benefit scheme in the UK. It is not possible for the Group to obtain sufficient information to enable it to account for the scheme as a defined
benefit scheme. Therefore it accounts for the scheme as a defined contribution scheme.
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27 Pension obligations...continued

27 Pension obligations...continued

Other defined benefit pension schemes

The Group and TGPL’s employer asset shares are set out below:

The Group and TGPL also contributes to three defined benefit pension schemes, where the share of the assets and liabilities can be identified.
The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of a qualified actuary. The latest full actuarial valuations for the schemes were carried
out at 31 March 2016 and have been updated by the actuaries to 31 March 2018 on an FRS 102 basis.

			
2018
				£’000

TGPL is a member of a pension scheme with Cheshire West and Chester Council (“the Cheshire Pension fund”). The scheme is reporting a pension asset
of £4.4m as at 31 March 2018 (2017: £3.5m) but there is uncertainty whether TGPL will be able to recover the asset either through reduced contributions
in the future or through refunds from the scheme and as a result the asset has not been recognised in the financial statements.
The defined benefit pension liability comprises the following schemes:
				
Group
				2018
				£m

TGPL
2018
£m

Group
2017
£m

TGPL
2017
£m

London Pensions Fund Authority			5.1

5.1

5.6

5.6

Unfunded scheme			0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

			5.3

5.3

5.9

5.9

The main weighted average assumptions used within the remaining schemes are as follows:

2018
%

2017
£’000

2017
%

46%

30,614

55%

5%

2,570

5%

Group
Equities			26,699
Target Return Portfolio			

2,849

Infrastructure			518

1%

612

1%

Bonds			20,447

36%

15,513

28%

Property			4,463

8%

4,059

7%

Cash			2,426

4%

1,954

4%

Total			57,402

100%

55,322

100%

			
2018
				£’000

2018
%

2017
£’000

2017
%

46%

30,614

55%
5%

TGPL

						
2018
						
p.a.

2017
p.a.

Group

Equities			26,699
2,849

5%

2,570

Infrastructure			518

Target Return Portfolio			

1%

612

1%

Bonds			20,447

36%

15,513

28%

Price increases					
2.9%

3.0%

Salary increases					
3.0%

3.1%

Property			4,463

8%

4,059

7%

Pension increases					
2.4%

2.8%

Cash			2,426

4%

1,954

4%

Discount rate for scheme liabilities					

2.7%

2.9%

Total			57,402

100%

55,322

100%

Price increases					
2.9%

3.0%

Salary increases					
3.0%

3.1%

Pension increases					
2.4%

2.8%

Discount rate for scheme liabilities					

2.9%

			
			2018
						£’000

2017
£’000

TGPL

2.7%

The fair value of the assets in the scheme and the assessed present value of the liabilities in the scheme are as follows:

Group and TGPL
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Estimated employer assets					

57,402

55,324

Present value of scheme liabilities					

62,472

60,916

Present value of unfunded liabilities					

244

346

Total value of liabilities					

62,716

61,262

Pension provision					5,314

5,938
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27 Pension obligations...continued

27 Pension obligations...continued

Recognition in Statement of Comprehensive Income

Reconciliation of fair value of employer assets

The amounts recognised in relation to the other defined benefit schemes in the Statement of Comprehensive Income are as follows:
			
			2018
						£’000

2017
£’000

			
			2018
						£’000

2017
£’000

Group and TGPL

Group and TGPL

Opening fair value of employer assets					

55,324

9,713

Service cost					(453)

(461)

Acquired on transfer of engagement					

-

43,084

Net interest on the defined (liability)/asset					

(206)

Interest on assets					

343

371

Administration expenses					(16)

(13)

Return on assets less interest					

341

1,635

Total surplus/(deficit)					(628)

(680)

Actuarial gains/(losses)					-

435

(159)

The amounts recognised in relation to the other defined benefit schemes in Other Comprehensive Income are as follows:
			
			2018
						£’000

2017
£’000

Group and TGPL
Return on Fund assets in excess of interest					

341

1,635

Other actuarial gains on assets					

-

435

Change in financial assumptions					

593

(3,661)

Change in demographic assumptions					

-

253

Experience gain on defined benefit obligation					

9

1,569

Re-measurement of the net assets/(defined liability)					

943

231

Administration expenses					(16)

(13)

Contributions by employers					

216

403

Contributions by members					

80

91

Estimated benefits paid					

(253)

(395)

Movement in Cheshire pension fund					

1,367

-

Closing fair value of employer assets					

57,402

55,324

TGPL
2018
£m

Group
2017
£m

TGPL
2017
£m

106.2

130.3

132.1

28 Notes to the statement of cashflows
				
Group
				2018
				£m

Cash flow from operating activities
Operating surplus for the year			

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation

107.1

Adjustments for non-cash items:				

			
			2018
						£’000

2017
£’000

Group and TGPL

Depreciation, impairment and write-offs			66.5

63.9

46.7

45.2

(14.7)

(14.2)

(14.3)

(13.9)

Decrease/(increase) in stock			(5.8)

(8.8)

42.1

(2.6)

Amortisation of deferred Government grant			

Opening defined benefit obligation					

61,262

15,605

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other debtors			

11.0

24.2

(8.7)

5.2

Acquired on transfer of engagement					

-

43,084

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other creditors			

(11.3)

(15.2)

(4.0)

(0.1)

Current service cost					

453

372

Interest cost					502

577

Net cash inflow from operating activities			

152.8

156.1

192.1

165.9

Actuarial (gains)/losses and changes in financial assumptions					

(593)

Change in demographic assumptions					

-

3,661
(253)

Experience gain on defined benefit obligation					

(9)

(1,569)

Estimated unfunded benefits paid					

(17)

-

Estimated benefits paid					

(253)

(395)

Past service cost					

-

89

Contributions by members					

80

91

Movement in Cheshire pension fund					

1,291

-

Closing defined benefit obligation					

62,716

61,262
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32 Managing agents

29 Capital commitments
				
Group
				2018
				£m

TGPL
2018
£m

Group
2017
£m

TGPL
2017
£m

Capital expenditure that has been contracted for but has not been provided for
in these financial statements			48.7

43.3

78.9

78.4

Capital expenditure that has been authorised by the Board but has not been contracted for		

16.5

12.9

11.6

3.0

			65.2

56.2

90.5

81.4

The financing of capital expenditure that has been contracted for but has not been provided for in these financial statements will be provided through
a combination of:
				
Group
				2018
				£m

Certain accommodation owned by the Group is managed on its behalf under management agreements or short term leases by other bodies.
The principal agencies are listed below:
Units/bed spaces
Group
				
2018
				Number

Units/bed spaces
TGPL

2017
Number

2018
Number

2017
Number

Sunshing International Ltd			203

203

203

203

Homes For Change			75

75

75

75

MENCAP			55

52

55

52

Turning Point			52

52

52

52

Bangla			42

42

42

42

Agency:

TGPL
2018
£m

Group
2017
£m

TGPL
2017
£m

Home Group			46

46

46

46

9.7

9.8

10.4

10.4

Mears Care Limited			

-

40

-

40

Loan finance			11.3

11.3

49.4

49.4

Creative Support			55

61

55

61

First tranche sales/outright sales			27.7

22.2

19.1

18.6

Derby City Homes			33

33

33

33

78.4

Community Integrated Care			39

31

39

31

Social Housing Grant			

			48.7

43.3

78.9

Framework Housing Association			31

31

31

31

Sheffield Health & Social Care			

18

31

18

31

30 Contingent liabilities

DISC			30

30

30

30

The Group enters into development and construction contracts with a range of construction companies in its normal course of business. At the end of the
year, there are a number of claims by the contractor under a few of these contracts for additional costs. Where these are valid and the additional cost is
capable of estimation, they have been accrued in the accounts. However, there are some claims which the Group is disputing and these are not provided
for as they are not considered to be liabilities. These claims relate to both TGPL and its subsidiaries, Guinness Developments Limited and Guinness
Platform Limited, and are not considered to have an impact on the Statement of Comprehensive Income or considered material to the accounts.

Rooftop			30

30

30

30

Sheffield Social Services			

4

23

4

-

Richmond Fellowship			17

23

17

-

31 Operating leases

Comfort Call			40

-

40

-

Others			471

518

457

550

			1,241

1,321

1,227

1,307

The Group leases some of its office accommodation on non-cancellable operating leases.

33 Subsidiary undertakings

At 31 March 2018, the Group had minimum lease payments under such leases as set out below:
				
Group
				2018
				£m

TGPL
2018
£m

Group
2017
£m

TGPL
2017
£m

Registered Charity

Provision of Care and Support Services

Within one year			2.9

1.5

3.2

1.7

Guinness Care and Support Limited		

Registered Provider

Provision of Care and Support Services

Within one to five years			

2.2

0.8

3.5

1.5

Guinness Developments Limited

a

Registered under the Companies Act 2006

After five years			

0.7

-

0.2

-

Guinness Homes Limited

a

Registered under the Companies Act 2006

Operating leases which expire:

			5.8
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2.3

6.9

3.2

Subsidiary

Note

City Response Limited

a

Devon Sheltered Homes Trust

c

Status

Registered under the Companies Act 2006

Activity

Property Maintenance Services

Property Development
Property Development

Guinness Housing Association Limited		

Registered Provider

Supplier of Social Housing

Guinness Platform Limited

a

Registered under the Companies Act 2006

Hallco 1397 Limited

a

Registered under the Companies Act 2006

Property Development

Independent Home Life Services Limited

d

Registered under the Companies Act 2006

Provision of Care Services

Kylemore Care Services Limited

b

Registered under the Companies Act 2006

Dormant

Live Well at Home Limited

b

Registered under the Companies Act 2006

Holding company

The Guinness Trust

e

Registered Charity

Property Development

Dormant
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Registered Office, Principal Advisors
and Lenders

33 Subsidiary undertakings...continued
a)

City Response Limited, Guinness Homes Limited, Guinness Developments Limited, Guinness Platform Limited and Hallco 1397 Limited
are private companies limited by shares and of whom The Guinness Partnership Limited is the parent entity and sole shareholder.

b)

Live Well at Home Limited and Kylemore Care Services Limited are wholly owned subsidiaries of Guinness Care and Support Limited.
Kylemore Care Services was a dormant company at 31 March 2018 and was struck off on 15 May 2018.

c)

Guinness Care and Support Limited is the Corporate Trustee of Devon Sheltered Homes Trust.

d)

Independent Home Life Services Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Live Well at Home Limited.

e)

TGPL is the Corporate Trustee of The Guinness Trust.

Registered Office

Bankers

Lenders

The Guinness Partnership Limited
30 Brock Street
Regent’s Place
London
NW1 3FG

National Westminster Bank plc

BAE Systems plc

Barclays Bank plc

Barclays Bank plc

HSBC Bank plc

Dexia Public Finance Bank

Lloyds TSB Bank plc

Halifax Bank of Scotland plc

Statutory Auditor

34 Related party transactions
At 31 March 2018, there were 2 members (2017: 2) of Committees within the Group who had tenancy agreements with the Group and 1 member
who is a leaseholder (2017: 1). The tenancy agreements and lease have been granted on the same terms as for all other tenants/leaseholders and the
housing management procedures, including those relating to the management of arrears if applicable, have been applied consistently to those tenants.
Transactions between TGPL and other members of The Guinness Partnership Limited Group are set out below:

Nexia Smith & Williamson
25 Moorgate
London
EC2R 6AY

			
Services
			
received
			
2017/18
			
£’000

Solicitors

Services
provided
2017/18
£’000

Debtor/ (Creditor)
balances as at
31 March 2018
£’000

Regulated
Guinness Care and Support Limited		

3,376

1,200

7,075

Guinness Housing Association Limited		

-

380

5,465

Guinness Developments Limited		

46,738

430

2,492

Guinness Homes Limited 		

-

375

5,752

Guinness Platform Limited		

-

-

(402)

Hallco 1397 Limited 		

-

-

4,582

City Response Limited		

45,892

900

(4,263)

Devon Sheltered Homes Trust		

-

-

808

Lloyds Banking Group
Nationwide Building Society
Orchardbrook Limited
The Royal Bank of Scotland plc

Trowers & Hamlins LLP
3 Bunhill Row
London
EC1Y 8YZ

Santander UK plc
Warrington Borough Council
Yorkshire Building Society

Non-Regulated

The debtor balances above include amounts payable to TGPL for approved Gift Aid for the year ended 31 March 2018.
The equity investments in Group undertakings are disclosed in Note 16. At year-end TGPL had loan balances with other Group undertakings.
These loans are at “arm’s length” terms.
			
Facility
Drawn
				2018
			
£m
£m

Drawn
2017
£m

Guinness Developments Limited		

25.0

-

-

Guinness Homes Limited 		

45.0

-

-

Hallco 1397 Limited 		

10.0

4.3

4.2

City Response Limited		

1.0

-

-

Guinness Care & Support Limited (GCS) have a £2.5m revolving credit facility with TGPL of which £nil was drawn at 31 March 2018 and
Devon Sheltered Homes Trust have a £1.5m facility through GCS, of which £0.8m was drawn at year-end.
Where possible, services are recharged between entities at the cost at which they were originally incurred. Back office costs and other management
costs are charged on a range of apportionment bases such as number of FTEs, number of units in management and total loan facilities.

35 Post balance sheet event
Since the year-end, TGPL has disposed of 1,864 tenanted properties to other Registered Providers.
The total proceeds amounted to £84.9m and were in excess of the carrying values included in these financial statements.
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The Guinness Partnership Limited Board
Neil Braithwaite, Chair

The Guinness Partnership Limited
Executive Team

Appointed: 17.10.13 Effective from: 01.11.13

Chair The Guinness Partnership Limited.
Neil is Chair of the Service and Performance Committee and a Board member of Guinness Housing Association
Limited. He is also a trustee of Barnardo’s and its pension scheme; the Chairman of the Brathay Trust; Governor
of primary and secondary co-operative academies in Leeds and Stoke-on-Trent; and a former Managing Director
of the Specialist Retail Businesses of the Co-operative Group.

Peter Cotton, Deputy Chair

Appointed: 09.12.09 Effective from: 01.04.10

Deputy Chair and Senior Independent Director The Guinness Partnership Limited.
Peter is Chair of Guinness Care and Support Limited, Chair of the Remuneration and Nominations Committee and
Chair of Guinness Housing Association Limited. He is also a volunteer and ambassador for Florence Nightingale
Hospice; a bereavement counsellor; a former Non-Executive Director and member of the audit, remuneration and
customer service committees at Eurostar; and former MD of Scotrail, Gatwick Express, and Del Monte UK.

Amanda Calvert

Appointed: 31.01.17 Effective from: 31.01.17

Amanda is a Board member of Guinness Housing Association Limited and member of the Group Audit
and Risk Committee. Amanda joined our Board from Wulvern Housing Limited. She is also proprietor of
the Quince Consultancy Ltd; a Chartered Engineer; former Vice President of IT risk and compliance at
AstraZeneca; and founder of Quince Consultancy.

Catriona Simons

Appointed: 01.10.12 Effective from: 01.10.12

Group Chief Executive of The Guinness Partnership Limited; Member of the Service and Performance Committee;
Member of the Health, Safety and Environmental Committee; Board Member of Guinness Developments
Limited; Board Member of Guinness Homes Limited; Board Member of Guinness Housing Association Limited;
Board Member of Guinness Care and Support Limited; Board Member of City Response Limited; Board
Member of Hallco 1397 Limited. Board Member of Guinness Platform Limited.

John Lougher

Appointed: 23.03.16 Effective from: 01.05.16

John is a board member of Guinness Housing Association Limited, and member of the Health, Safety
and Environmental Committee. He is the Strategic Land Managing Director of Bovis Homes; a foundation
governor at Great Rollright Church of England primary school; and a Chartered Surveyor. He has worked
in house building since 2003 and, before that, in property and construction consultancy.

Laure Duhot

Appointed: 18.05.16 Effective from: 01.07.16

Catriona Simons
Group Chief Executive
Appointed: December 2009
Appointed Group Chief Executive: July 2015

Ian Joynson
Executive Director of Asset Management
Appointed: November 2014

Jon Milburn
Group Development Director
Appointed: June 2016

Paul Roberts
Executive Director of Property Services
Appointed: June 2012

Paul Watson
Managing Director, Guinness Care and Support Limited
Appointed: December 2007

Laure is a Board member of Guinness Housing Association Limited and member of the Group Audit and Risk
Committee. She has a background in investment and property development, fund and asset management,
corporate finance and audit and risk. She is Director of Duhot-Consult Limited, Non-Executive Director of
MedicX Fund (LON:MXF) Ltd, a REIT listed on the London Stock Exchange; a former Managing Director;
and former Deputy Chair and Board member of Thames Valley Housing Group.

Peter Hedderly

Mike Petter

Executive Director of Corporate Services
Appointed: July 2015

Appointed: 13.02.14 Effective from: 01.03.14

Mike is Chair of the Health, Safety and Environmental Committee, a member of the Remuneration and
Nominations Committee, a member of the Group Audit and Risk Committee, a Board member of Guinness Care
and Support Limited and a Board member of Guinness Housing Association Limited. He is also a Board member
of the Considerate Constructors’ Scheme; a Chartered Engineer; an Advisory Panel Member with Scottish and
Southern Electricity Networks; and is a Management Consultant at Five Dimensional Management Ltd

Philip Day

Phil Morgan

Group Finance Director
Appointed: July 2017

Appointed: 31.01.17 Effective from: 31.01.17

Phil is a Board member of Guinness Housing Association Limited and a member of the Service and
Performance committee. Phil is a housing specialist who joined our Board from Wulvern Housing Limited.
He is the Chair of Health Watch Salford; Director of Phil Morgan Ltd; and former Executive Director of Tenant
Services at the Tenant Services Authority and former Chief Executive of TPAS.

Samantha Pitt

Appointed: 12.02.15 Effective from: 01.03.15

Sarah Thomas
Executive Director of Customer Services
Appointed: January 2016

Samantha is Chair of the Group Audit and Risk Committee, a board member of Guinness Housing
Association Limited and a member of the Remuneration and Nominations Committee. She is also a qualified
accountant; Group Treasurer and trustee of all pension schemes for Network Rail; a director of various other
Network Rail companies; Chair of its Charity Panel; and previously worked for the Strategic Rail Authority.
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great service
great homes
a great place to work
and a great business

30 Brock Street, London NW1 3FG
www.guinnesspartnership.com
The Guinness Partnership Ltd is a charitable
Community Benefit Society No. 31693R
Registered in England and is Registered
Provider of Social Housing No. 4729.

